
Sierra County Commission 
Sierra County Commission Chambers  

1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901 
Wednesday September 13th, 2023 

ALL MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WILL BE ABLE TO WATCH AND LISTEN TO THE MEETING VIA: 
(facebook.com/SCEmergencyServices) (Local radio KCHS 101.9) 

AMENDED AGENDA 

Call to Order: 9:45 AM Public Hearing – Request to Vacate portion of Miranda’s Highland 
Retreat Unit No.1 

 10:00 AM Regular Meeting 

Roll Call:   Travis Day-Chairman   Shelly K. Trujillo-Clerk 
James E. Paxon-Vice-Chair  Nance, Pato & Stout, LLC-Attorney 
Hank Hopkins -Commissioner  Amber Vaughn-County Manager 

Pledge of Allegiance 

New Mexico State Flag Pledge-I salute the flag of the State of New Mexico and the Zia symbol of perfect 
friendship among united cultures. 

Introduction of Guests 

I. Approval of Agenda
II. Approval of Minutes

A. Special Meeting- June 27th, 2023
B. Regular Meeting – July 18th, 2023
C. Special Meeting- July 28th, 2023
D. Special Meeting- August 17th, 2023

III. Public Comment: Limited to 3 Minutes
IV. Consent Agenda:

A. Resolution No. 110-185 Accounts Payables- July-August
B. Resolution No. 110-186 Budget Adjustments
C. Resolution No. 110-187 Indigent Claims

V. Presentations/Reports:
A. Years of Service Awards
B. Department Reports
C. Update on Multipurpose Fair Building and Swine Facility

VI. Board of Finance:
A. July Reconciliation
B. August Reconciliation

VII. Old Business:
VIII. New Business:

A. Direction to Publish Amendment to Personnel Policy Ordinance 16-009



B. Direction to Publish Ordinance Authorizing Repayment to the New Mexico Economic
Development Department for the Local Economic Development Act Project to SpinLaunch
for the Termination of the Project Participation Agreement

C. Financial Support of the National Center for Public Lands Counties Consideration
D. Consideration of SWCCA Joint Booth
E. Road Vacation Request VR23-001 for portion of Oak Street in Kingston
F. Request to Vacate remaining portion of Miranda’s Highland Retreat Unit No. 1 Subdivision
G. Appointment of Sharon Luna, LaNeer Wrye and Bruce Swingle as Freeholders to view the

request to vacate a portion of Lula Street in Kingston with Ronnie Chavez as an alternate
H. Approval to Receive Donation of Fire Apparatus from Dona Ana County to Sierra County: 2

fire trucks, 1994 International Luverne pumpers
IX. Contracts-Agreements-Procurement:

A. New Mexico Memorandum of Understanding Office of the Secretary of State and Sierra
County

B. Memorandum of Agreement Between Sierra County and the Southwest Council of
Governments

C. Rise Grant Agreement-Official Approval-Detention
D. BHIZ Grant Agreement-Official Approval-Detention
E. COSSAP Grant Agreement-Detention
F. Catalis Enterprise- Cama System-Sole Source- Assessor
G. Triadic-Sole Source Agreement-Administration

X. Resolutions-Ordinances-Proclamations:
A. Resolution No. 110-188 Amended Take Home Vehicle Policy
B. Resolution No. 110-189 A Resolution to Approve 2023 Tax Rates

XI. Executive Session (Section 10-15 E thru H):
Pending and Threatened Litigation:
Caouette v. Sierra County
Personnel
Real Estate:

XII. Open Session Actions from Executive Session: Adjourn

Next proposed Scheduled Meeting: Regular Meeting, Tuesday, Oct 17th , 2023, at 10:00 AM. Items for 
the agenda must be submitted to the Sierra County Administration Office no later than 5:00pm on the 
Monday the week before the meeting. 

If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language 
interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the hearing or 
meeting please contact the Sierra County Manager, at 1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, New 
Mexico 87901, phone (575) 894-6215 at least one (1) week prior to the meeting or as soon as possible.  
Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in various accessible formats. 
Please contact the Sierra County Manager if a summary or other type of accessible format is needed. 



Attn: Sierra Count Planning and Zoning 
Sierra County Commissioners 

July 24, 2023 

Re: Request for Vacation of subdivision/lots 

To Whom it May Concern: 

We respectfully request that the below listed properties and subdivision 
be vacated permanently.' 

Miranda's Highland Retreat lots 45 and 47, z�, "?,1, 38 A-"'b 8..-2.K

Miranda's Highland Retreat subdivision 
tA.t\ 

Deeds for� lots are included in this packet as well as the deed 
showing full ownership of the land the subdivision is located in. 

We request that since all lots are now under the ownership of one 
owner that the entire subdivision, any roads, easement or access be 
vacated and reverted to historical prior use - grazing. This would apply 
to the entire parcel of approx. 1400 acres. 

' 
I 

Thank you for your attenvon to this matter. 
·�I �I- /00-,r'-'"'3
Robert and ffinnafer Daugherty 
17 Prospector Rd 
Winston, NM 87943 
575-743-0448





















          SIERRA COUNTY COMMISSION 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

        JUNE 27, 2023 

CALL TO ORDER: 11:00 A.M. 

The Sierra County Board of County Commissioners met in Special Session at 
11:00 A.M. on Tuesday, June 27, 2023, at the Sierra County Commission 
Chambers, 1712 N Date, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico. 

ROLL CALL: 

Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
            Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chair 

Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 

Clerk of Board: Shelly Trujillo-Absent 

County Attorney: Dave Pato-Absent 

County Manager: Amber Vaughn 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

NEW MEXICO STATE FLAG PLEDGE: 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the agenda as presented.
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.

II. EXECUTIVE SESSION (SECTION 10-15 E THRU H)

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to go into Executive Session for
Personnel, Real Estate, Pending and Threatened Litigation.  Commissioner
Hopkins SECONDED the motion. Roll call vote was taken with all
Commissioners present voting yes.

            District 1 – Yes 
District 2 – Yes 
District 3 – Yes 



Sierra County Commission Special Meeting 
June 27, 2023 
Page 2 

Pending and Threatened Litigation: 

BOCC v. State of New Mexico, GSD RMD 

Personnel 
Real Estate  

XII. OPEN SESSION ACTIONS FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION:

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to come back into Regular Session.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Roll call vote was taken, 
with all Commissioners present voting yes. 

Direction to Staff regarding BOCC v State of New Mexico, GSD, RMD 

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to adjourn the meeting.  Commission Chair 
Day SECONDED the motion.    

ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further business to come before the Board, Commission 
Chair Day adjourned the meeting.  



Sierra County Commission Special Meeting 
June 27, 2023 
Page 3 

Dated this 27th day of June, 2023. 

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 

________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 

________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
Shelly K Trujillo, County Clerk 



          SIERRA COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

        JULY 18, 2023 

CALL TO ORDER:   10:00 am Regular Meeting 

The Sierra County Board of County Commissioners met in Regular Session 
at 10:00 A.M. on Tuesday, July 18, 2023, at the Sierra County Commission 
Chambers, 1712 N. Date St, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico. 

ROLL CALL: 

Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
            Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chair 

Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 

Clerk of Board: Shelly K. Trujillo-Absent 

County Attorney: David Pato 

County Manager: Amber Vaughn 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

NEW MEXICO STATE FLAG PLEDGE: 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 

Kayce Edwards, Mike Hearn, Josh Baker, chuck Wentworth-Sentinel, 
Candace Chavez, Serina Bartoo, Ryan Williams, Jessica West, Michelle 
Atwell  

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the agenda as presented.
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

A. Regular Meeting-June 20, 2023



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
July 18, 2023 
Page 2 

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the minutes as 
presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.  

III. PUBLIC COMMENT: LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES

Ken Lyon stated the Sierra County Fairgrounds need work.

Summer Woods on behalf of the Fair Board does not want funds to go to the
RV Park.  The funds need to go to the Fair Barn. 

Becky Bartoo stated the focus is on the kids.  It’s a convenient location.  Ms. 
Bartoo asked to start a plan for a new building. 

Jenni Neeley is advocating for Fairground upgrade. 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA:

A. Resolution No. 110-176- Account Payables

B. Resolution No. 110-177- Budget Adjustments

C. Resolution No. 110-178- Budget Transfer

D. Resolution No. 110-179- Indigent Claims

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Consent Agenda as presented.  
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

V. PRESENTATIONS/REPORTS:

A. Years of Service award
B. Department Reports

VI. BOARD OF FINANCE:

A. June Reconciliation

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the April Reconciliation 
as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.  

VII. OLD BUSINESS:

VIII. NEW BUSINESS:



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
July 18, 2023 
Page 3 

A. Appointment of Sharon Luna, LaNeer Wrye and Bruce Swingle as
Freeholders to view the request to vacate a portion of Oak Street in Kingston

Commission Chair Day MOVED to approve Appointment of Sharon Luna,
LaNeer Wrye and Bruce Swingle as Freeholders to view the request to vacate
a portion of Oak Street in Kingston as presented.  Commission Vice-Chair
Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioners District
1-2-3 voting yes.

B. Approval of the Use of Deputies Outside of their Normal Functions for
Wolf Depredation Investigations

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Approval of the Use of
Deputies Outside of their Normal Functions for Wolf Depredation
Investigations as presented. Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.
Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes.

IX. CONTRACTS – AGREEMENTS – PROCUREMENT

A. Joint Powers Agreement County of Sierra, County of Sierra Sheriff and
City of Elephant Butte Provision of Law Enforcement Services for City of
Elephant Butte

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Joint Powers Agreement
County of Sierra, County of Sierra Sheriff and City of Elephant Butte
Provision of Law Enforcement Services for City of Elephant Butte as
presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes.

X. RESOLUTIONS – ORDINANCES – PROCLAMATIONS

A. Resolution No. 110-180-Designating the Location of Election Day Polling
Places for all Statewide Elections Conducted in 2024 and 2025

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-180-
Designating the Location of Election Day Polling Places for all Statewide 
Elections Conducted in 2024 and 2025 as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins 
SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 
voting yes. 

B. Resolution No. 110-181-Adopting the FY 2025-2029 Infrastructure
Capital Improvement Plan (ICIP)

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-181-
Adopting the FY 2025-2029 Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan (ICIP) 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
July 18, 2023 
Page 4 

as presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  
Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

C. Resolution No. 110-182-Adopting the Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-
2024

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-182-
Adopting the Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 as presented.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION SECTION (10-15-E THRU H):

 Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to go into Executive Session for 
Personnel, Real Estate, Pending and Threatened Litigation.  Commissioner 
Hopkins SECONDED the motion. Roll call vote was taken with all 
Commissioners present voting yes.   

            District 1 – Yes 
District 2 – Yes 
District 3 – Yes 

      PENDING AND THREATENED LITIGATION: 

A. Catron County, et al. V GSD & Doucette

     PERSONNEL: 

 REAL ESTATE:  

            DISPOSAL OF REAL PROPERTY 

XII. OPEN SESSION ACTIONS FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION:

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to come back into Regular Session.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Roll call vote was taken, 
with all Commissioners present voting yes. 

A. Ratification of Participation in Catron County, et al. v. GSD & Doucette

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Ratification of Participation in 
Catron County, et al. v. GSD & Doucette as presented.  Commission Vice-
Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner 
Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
July 18, 2023 
Page 5 

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT REGULAR SIERRA COUNTY 
COMMISSION MEETING:  

The date and time of the next Regular Sierra County Commission Meeting 
has been scheduled for Wednesday, September 12, 2023 at 10:00 A.M. at the 
Sierra County Commission Chamber at 1712 N. Date St.  Truth or 
Consequences, New Mexico. 

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to adjourn the meeting. Commission Vice-
Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.    

ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further business to come before the Board, Commission 
Chair Day adjourned the meeting.  



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
July 18, 2023 
Page 6 

Dated this 18th day of July, 2023. 

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 

________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner James E Paxon, Vice-Chairman 

________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
Shelly K Trujillo, County Clerk 



          SIERRA COUNTY COMMISSION 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

        JULY 28, 2023 

CALL TO ORDER: 1:00 P.M. 

The Sierra County Board of County Commissioners met in Special Session at 
1:00 P.M. on Friday, July 28, 2023, at the Sierra County Commission 
Chambers, 1712 N Date, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico. 

ROLL CALL: 

Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
            Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chair 

Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 

Clerk of Board: Shelly Trujillo-Absent 

County Attorney: Dave Pato-Absent 

County Manager: Amber Vaughn 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

NEW MEXICO STATE FLAG PLEDGE: 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the agenda as presented.
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.

II. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Resolution No. 110-183-Budget Transfer
B. Resolution No. 110-184-Fourth Quarter Financial Report

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the Consent Agenda as
presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.

III. PUBLIC COMMENT-LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES



Sierra County Commission Special Meeting 
July 28, 2023 
Page 2 

IV. NEW BUSINESS

A. Appointment to the Sierra Vista Hospital Board

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to Table Appointment to the Sierra
Vista Hospital Board and seek further applicants.  Commissioner Hopkins
SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3
voting yes.

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to adjourn the meeting.  Commission Vice-
Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.

ADJOURNMENT:

There being no further business to come before the Board, Commission
Chair Day adjourned the meeting.



Sierra County Commission Special Meeting 
July 28, 2023 
Page 3 

Dated this 28th day of July, 2023. 

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 

________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 

________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
Shelly K Trujillo, County Clerk 



          SIERRA COUNTY COMMISSION 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

        AUGUST 17, 2023 

CALL TO ORDER: 1:00 P.M. 

The Sierra County Board of County Commissioners met in Special Session at 
1:00 P.M. on Thursday, August 17, 2023, at the Sierra County Commission 
Chambers, 1712 N Date, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico. 

ROLL CALL: 

Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
            Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chair 

Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member-by telephone 

Clerk of Board: Shelly Trujillo  

County Attorney: Dave Pato-by telephone 

County Manager: Amber Vaughn 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

NEW MEXICO STATE FLAG PLEDGE: 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 

Jessica West 

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Commission Vice-chair Paxon MOVED to approve the agenda as presented.
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with
Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.

II. NEW BUSINESS

A. Appointment to the Sierra Vista Hospital Board

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the Appointment to the 
Sierra Vista Hospital Board as presented, appointing Kathi Pape.    
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 



Sierra County Commission Special Meeting 
August 17, 2023 
Page 2 

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to adjourn the meeting.  Commission Vice- 
Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.    

ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further business to come before the Board, Commission 
Chair Day adjourned the meeting.  



Sierra County Commission Special Meeting 
August 17, 2023 
Page 3 

Dated this 17th day of August, 2023. 

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 

________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 

________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
Shelly K Trujillo, County Clerk 



State of New Mexico 

Shelly Trujillo 
Cou11ty Clerk 
575-894-2840

Ca11dace Chavez 
Cou11ty Treasurer 

575-894-3524

Michael D. Husto11 
Cou11ty Assessor 

575-894-2589

Tom Pestak 
Probate Judge 
57.'i-894-2840 

1712 N. Date St. 
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 

Amber Vaughn, Cou11ty Manager 

575-894-6115 voice 575-894-9548/ax

County of Sierra 

James E. Paxo11 
District I 

575-894-62 J 5

Travis Day 
District 2 

5 75-894-62 I 5 

Ha11k Hopkins 
District 3 

575-894-6215

G/e1111 Hami/to11 
Cou11ty Sheriff 
.'i7.'i-894-9 l.'i0 

RESOLUTION NO. 110-185 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PAYMENT OF CLAIMS THROUGH THE PERIOD 
BEGINNING JULY 1sr, 2023 

AND 
ENDING AUGUST 318T, 2023 

WHEREAS, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY, NEW 

MEXICO, MEETING IN REGULAR PUBLIC SESSION ON SEPTEMBER 13TH, 2023 
DESIRES TO PROVIDE FOR THE EQUITABLE AND REASONABLE PAYMENT OF 
CLAIMS DUE AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, AND; 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT CLAIMS, PURCHASE VOUCHERS AND 

WARRANTS DETAILED AND ATTACHED HERETO, PAYABLE FROM THE VARIOUS 
FUNDS, IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,378,381.71 ARE PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED 

ON THIS 13TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2023. 

ATTEST: 

SHELLY K. TRUJILLO, COUNTY CLERK 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 

TRAVIS DAY, COMMISSIONER 

HANK HOPKINS COMMISSIONER 

JAMES PAXON, COMMISSIONER 



















































































































































































































































































































State of New Mexico

Shelly K Trujillo
County Clerk
s75-894-2840

Candace Chavez
County Treasurer

s75-894-3524

Michael Huston
County Assessor

s7s-894-2589

Tom Pestak
Probate Judge
575-740-4900

427 -0-1093

500-0-1432

413-0-1610

428-0-1604
401-0-1260

500-0-1417

634-0-1561

413-0-1604

500-0-1039

lncrease Exoense
427 -00-2771

500-58-2410

413-80-2250

413-80-2251
406-70-2872

512-00-2550

County of Sieruu

Resolution No. 110-186
A BudgeUline ltem Adjustment Resolution lncrease Revenue and Expense in Funds 427,500,413,

428,401,512,406 and 634 & Decrease Expense in512,500 and 502.

Whereas, the Board of Sierra County Commissioners, meeting in regular public session

September 13, 2023, deem it necessary to increase and decrease in the said line items in the budget;

Whereas, money received from National Opioid Settlement Fund, set up new line item in Grant Program

for Pilot Project, money received from State of New Mexico for Prepo Fire, Arch Fire, and Rancher Fire for

Caballo Fire Department, money received from NM Department of Homeland Security for SHSGP, money

received from Socorro County, Catron County & National Fish & Wildlife Groves Estate Funds, money

received from State of New Mexico Dept. of Homeland Security, did not budget enough torFY2023-2024,

increase/decrease line items in LATCF, money received from NM Department of Health for Dispatch,

donation for Caballo Fire Department from Veterans Wars Post and correct budget for FY24;

Thefore Be It Resolved, that the Sierra County Board of Commissioners hereby move to

lmplement the line item adjustments in the FY 2023-2024 Operating Budget as described below

lncrease Revenue

1712 N. Date, Suite D
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901

Amber Vaughn, County Manager
5 7 5-894-62 I 5 voice 57 5-894-9 548 fax

National Opioid Settlement

Grant Program-Pilot Project

Caballo Fire Dept-State Forestry Equipment

County Livestock Loss Authority-Donations

General Fund-Refunds/Rei mbu rsements

Grant Project-SHSGP

Dispatch-State EMS Funding

Caballo Fire Department-Donations

Grant Project-Keep NM Beautiful

National Opi oid Settlement-Profession al/Lega I Se rvi ces

Grant Program-Prevention

Caballo Fire Dept-State Forestry Personnel

Caballo Fire Dept-State Forestry Equipment

lndigent-Safety Net Care Pool

LATCF-Build i ng Repairs/Mai ntenance

James Paxon
Commissioner
s7s-894-621 5

Hank Hopkins
Commissioner
575-894-621 5

Travis Day
Commissioner
575-894-621 5

Joshua Baker
Couttty Shertff
57s-894-91s0

21 ,124.73
100,000.00

21,892.32

249 ,861.49
28,699.63

30,000.00
4,300.00

900.00

20,000.00

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

21,124.73

100,000.00

6,007.40

15,884.92

78,434.38

286,884.00

SIERRA COU N
NEW MEXICO



512-00-2900
512-01-2333

512-01-2550
512-50-2900

500-03-2075
500-00-2012
500-00-2410
s00-50-2745

502-56-2978
502-56-2988
512-50-2747
500-50-2780

502-56-2986

500-00-2094

634-32-2997

634-32-2221

634-32-2222
634-32-2771

406-70-2870

406-70-2872

413-80-2200

502-56-2954

502-56-2972

502-56-2975

500-00-2137

500-03-2075

$ 140,157.00

$ 45,580.52

$ 13,264.00

$ 83,628.00

$ 30,000.00

$ 19,530.00

$ 64,877.00

$ 474,396.00

$ 350,894.59

$ 1,663,685.05

$ 65,314.00

$ 45,872.31

$ 315,000.00

$ 1 10,896.00

$ 4,300.00

$ 1,954.89

$ 204.7e

$ 4,500.00

$ 53,575.78

$ 78,434.38

$ 900.00

$ 248,653.00

$ 200,ooo.oo

$ 20,000.00

$ 2o,oo0.oo

$ 30,000.00

Decrease Expense
512-00-2790
512-02-2999

500-50-2747

502-56-2982

500-50-2101
500-50-2749

502-56-2981

Attest:

LATCF-Capital Outlay

LATCF-Computer Data/l nternet

LATCF-Bu ilding Repai rs/Mai ntenance

LATCF-Capital Outlay

Grant Project-SHSGP Equipment

Grant Project-Administrative Fees

Grant Project-Prevention

Grant Project-Sugar Sand Bridge

Leg islative Appropriati on-Arrey Basebal I F ie I d

Legislative Appropriation-Fai rg rounds

LATCF-Bridge of Grace

Grant Projects-Bridge of Grace Match

Leg i slative Appropriatio n-Sheriff Office Eq u i pment

Grant Project-CllA Compensation

Dispatch-EMs Fund

Dispatch-Telephone

Dispatch-Printing & Publishing

Dispatch-Professional/Legal Services

lndigent-County Supported Medicaid

lndigent-Safety Net Care Pool

Caballo Fire Department-Donations

Legislative Appropriation-H illsboro

Legislative Appropriation-S.O Vehicles

Legislative Appropriation-Animal Shelter

Grant Project-Keep NM Beautiful

Grant Project-SHSGP Equipment

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

100,000.00
1,518.34

222,166.33

25,073.42

30,000.00
294.00

150,000.00

Passed, Approved and Adopted this 13th day of September 2023.

Travis Day, Chairman

James Paxon, Vice-Chairman

Shelly K. Trujillo, County Clerk Hank Hopkins, Member

LATCF-Special Projects

LATCF-Capital under $5000
Grant Project-Bridge of Grace

Legislative Appropriation-Bridge of Grace

Grant Project-County Match

Grant Project-RAID

Legislative Appropriation-Shuttle

Board of County Commissioners
Sierra County, New Mexico



State of New Mexico County of Sierra 

Shelly Trujillo 
County Clerk 
575-894-2840

Candace Chavez 
County Treasurer 

575-894-3524 

Michael Huston 
County Assessor 

575-894-2589 

Tom Pestak 
Probate Judge 
575-894-2840 

1712 Date 
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 

Amber Vaughn County Manager 
575-894-6215 voice 575-894-9548 fax 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

SIERRA COUNTY, NEW NEXICO 
Resolution No. 110-187 

Indigent Claims 

Travis Day 
Chairman 

575-894-6215

William Hopkins 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

James Paxon 
Vice-Chairman 
575-894-6215

Josh Baker 
County Sheriff 

575-894-9150 

WHEREAS, the Board of Sierra County Commissioners has received Indigent Hospital and Medical 
Claim request for those persons unable to make proper restitution for Medical Services in the amount of 

8299 .1 7 new claims, and; 

WHEREAS, the Sierra County Board of Commissioners desire to provide for the equitable and 

reasonable payment of claims, and; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Sierra County Board of Commissioners hereby approve 

payment to those Indigent Hospital Claims in the amount of: 

Sole community Providers in the amount of$ 8299 .1 7 

to be deducted from the proper funds appropriated in the 2023-2024PY Budget. September 13,2023 

Attest: 

SHELLY K. TRUilLLO 

SIERRA COUNTY CLERK 

Board of County Commissioners 

Sierra County, NM 

TRAVIS DAY, CHAIRMAN 

JAMES PAXON, VICE-CHAIRMAN 

WILLIAM HOPKINS, COMMISSIONER 



SIERRA COUNTY INDIGENT HEALTH CARE
RESOLUTION NO. 11 0-1 87

CLAIMS APPROVED FOR $ 8299..17

VENDOR# 12775 LUNA COUNTY DETENTION

VENDOR# 5616 CHETAH SHTVARAM DDS

VENDOR# 12OO COTINTY OF SOCORRO

VENDOR# 5494 CASSIE HEALTH CENTER

VENDOR# 5464 CONCORD RADIOLOGY

VENDOR # 5184 FILMORE EYE CLINIC

VENDOR # 2853 MIMBRES MEMORIAL

VENDOR # 3281 SIERRA VISTA HOSPITAL

Total

2 $ 2739.4s

4 $ 1182.36

t $ 2122.00

2 $ 161.97

I $ 249.29

2 $ 160.0s

2 $ 844.06

1 $ 839.99

$ 8299.t7



OIHS

lssued 08130123

Source Description

Source Totals RePort
County Of Sierra

Batch Dates 0911912023 through 09/1912023
For Vendor: All Vendors

Amount Billed Amount Paid

01
02
04
05
07

Source Totals Report Detail
lnvoice #

Jail - Physician Services
Jail - ln House lnmate Service
Jail - Hospital Out-Patient
Jail - Lab/X-Ray
Jail - Dental

1,025.00
4,861.45
2,026.71

25,101.44
4,058.56

322.02
4,961.45

839.99
1,093.35
1,182.36

Expenditures
Reimb/Adjustments

Grand Total

Source

37,073.16 8,299.17

37,073.16 8,299.17

DOS Amount Billed Amount Paid

16274.5494*3
1627 4.5494*4
16274.5184*2
16274.5184.2
16274.5184-1
16274*5184*1
1627 4.5184.1

4 invoices, 7 line items

INMATE.1200.12
lNMATE"1200.12
INMATE*2775.23
lNMATE"2775.23
lNMATE.2775.24
INMATE*2775.24
lNMATE.2775.24

3 invoices, 7 line items

5956.3281*1
5956*3281.1
5956*3281.1
5956*3281*1
5956.3281.1
5956*3281.1
5956.3281.1
5956*3281.1
5956*3281.1
5956*3281.1

I invoices, 10 line items

1 6333*5464*1
1 6333"5464.1
16333.5464.1
1 5095.2853*2

01

01

01

01

01

01

01

0811512023
0812212023
0212112023
02t2112023
0711912023
0711912023
0711912023

0810312023
0810312a23
0711912023
0711912023
0313012023
0710112023
0811s12023

0811812023
0811812023
0811812023
08t0712023

350.00
200.00
275.00
105.00
35.00
30.00
30.00

96.31
65.66

124.04
6.69

17.50
5.91
5.91

02
02
02
02
02
02
02

04
04
04
04
04
04
o4
04
04
04

1,025.00

1,030.00
1,092.00

775.01
654.45
1 10.00

1,055.49
144.50

322.02

1,030.00
1,092.00

775.01
654.45
1 10.00

1,055.49
144.50

4,861.45 4,861.45

0713112023
07 t31t2023
0713112023
0713112023
07 t31t2023
07 t3112023
07 t3112023
07 t3112023
07 t3112023
07 t31t2023

657.34
86.00
86.00

368.35
87.02

242.75
295.00
161.20

12.00
31.05

452.81
86.00
86.00

0.00
32.08

0.00
119.20
37.86

0.00
26.04

05
05
05
05

2,026.71

400.00
261.00
261.00

39.33

839.99

108.51
70.39
70.39

8.06



1 5095.2853"2
1 5095.28 53*2
1 5095.28 53*2
1 5095.2853*2
1 5095.2853*2
1 5095.28 53*2
16274"2853.1
16274"2853.1
16274"2853.1
16274*2853"1
1627 4"2853.1
16274*2853"1
16274"2853.1
16274.2853.1
16274*2853.1
16274.2853.1
16274.2853.1
16274*2853.1

3 invoices, 22 Iine items

05
05

05
05
05
05
05

05

05

0810712023
08t0712023
0810712023
08t0712023
0810712023
0810712023
0610112023
0610112023
06/01 12023

06/01 12023
06/01 12023
0610112023
06/01 12023

a610112023
0610112023
06/01 12023
06/01 12023

0610112023

06t1012023
0611012023
0611012023
0611012023
0611012023
0611012023
0611012023

0611012023
0611012023
0611012023
0611012023
06t10t2023
0611012023
0611012023
0611012023
0611012023
06t1012023
06t1012023
0611012023
0611012023

431.01
282.21
603.74

90.64
232.61
104.32
453.44
136.12

2,399.04
189.86
39.33

1 ,199.52
208.64
104.32

3,225.18
2,150.12
9,325.42
2,964.59

9.93
13.70
8.48

15.79
13.68
6.08
2.81
2.81

149.44
9.18
8.06

149.44
6.08
6.08

186.73
186.73
30.49
30.49

05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05

25,101.44 1,093.35

12144.5616"2
12144"5616*2
12144*5616"2
14191*5616*1
14191"5616*1
14191*5616"1
14057.5616*3
14057.5616*3
14057.5616*3
14057.5616"3
14057.5616.3
14057.5616"3
14057.5616*3
16529.5616.1
1 6529.561 6.1
16529.5616.1
1 6529.561 6.1
16529.5616.1
1 6529.561 6.1
1 6529.561 6.1

07 28.94
11.14
11.14
28.94
11.14

111.35
34,25

2,894.00
22.28

118.04
118.04
118.04
1 18.04

28.94
11.14
11.14
11.14

123.62
123.62
123.62

28.94
11.14
11.14
28.94
11.14

111.35
34.25
28.94
11.14

1 18.04
1 18.04
1 18.04
118.04

28.94
11.14
11.14
11.14

123.62
123.62
123.62

07

07
07
07
07
07
07
07
07

07
07
07
07
07
07
07
07
07
07

4 invoices, 20 line items 4,058.56 1,182.36

Grand Totals

15 invoices listed.
66 Iine items listed.

37,073.16 8,299.17



Printed 08, 16, 34 TUESDAY AUGUST 8, 2023 DEPAR'IMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION Page 1 

I hereby certify that the contents in this LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION Entity 

report are true and correct to the best RECAP AND RECONCILIATION REPORT Period Ending 

of my knowledge and includes all funds. Prepared by 

CINDY 

FUNDM FUND NAME BEGINNING ENDING ADD LESS ADJUS'IMENTS ADJUSTED 

CASH BALANCE REVENUES TRANSFERS EXPENDATURES CASH BALANCE OUTSTANDING DEPOSITS IN PER BANK BALANCE 

CURRENT·FYR TO-DATE TO-DATE TO-DATE FOR PERIOD CHECKS TRANSIT ( + / -) FOR PERIOD STATEMENT DIFFERENCE DIFFERENCE 

101 CASH ON HAND 365. 00 -365.00 -365.00 

103 GENERAL FUND 1287. 4 8 ·1287 .48 -1652.48 

104 LANDFILL FINANCIAL ASSURANCE -1652.48 

112 GENERAL FUND 4184992. 84 -4184992. 84 -4186645. 32 

120 GENERAL FUND 534. 07 27072.36 27606. 43 15558438.64 -15530832. 21 -19717477 .53 

401 GENERAL 2855010. 35 321592.60 482305.65 2694297. 30 112965. 87 2807263.17 2807263 .17 -16910214. 36 

402 ROAD DEPAR'IMENT 163659.65 30547. 97 86053 .47 108154.15 2276.96 110431.11 110431.11 -16799783 .25 

403 FARM & RANGE 4259.88 4439.23 -179.35 4439.23 4259. 88 4259.88 ·16795523 .37 

404 WHITE SANDS MISSILE RANGE 812. 25 -812.25 38. 63 -773.62 -773.62 -16796296. 99 

405 LANDFILL 48458.53 9766. 03 7914. 29 50310.27 l30l. 02 51611. 29 51611.29 -16744685. 70 

406 COUNTY INDIGENT 96422.75 39989.44 15244. 36 121167. 83 202.65 121370.48 121370 .48 -16623315. 22 

407 HILLSBORO FIRE DEPT. 376334.81 2072.93 374261. 88 409.20 374671. 08 374671. 08 -16248644 .14 

409 ARREY/DERRY FIRE DEPT. 143886. 09 202B.03 141858. 06 635 .16 142493.22 142493. 22 -16106150. 92 

410 WINSTON FIRE DEPAR'IMENT 261388.45 7458.09 253930. 36 1491.78 255422 .14 255422 .14 -15850728. 78 

411 MONTICELLO FIRE DEPAR'IMENT 220021.80 9333. 41 210688. 39 1352.39 212040. 78 212040. 78 -15638688. 00 

412 NMGRT HOSPITAL FUND 58661. 85 70476.49 75438.66 53699. 68 53699. 68 53699. 68 -15584988. 32 

413 CABALL0 FIRE DEPAR'IMENT 172556. 36 12282. 45 160273.91 4135.28 164409 .19 164409 .19 ·15420579 .13 

414 LAS PALOMAS FIRE DEPT 291753. 75 1578. 21 290175 .54 259. 43 290434. 97 290434. 97 ·15130144 .16 

416 STATE SP PROJECTS 101413. 94 101413. 94 101413. 94 101413. 94 ·15028730.22 

417 STATE CAP PROJECTS 109220.68 109220. 68 109220. 68 109220. 68 ·14919509. 54 

418 STATE SB PROJECTS 81529.88 81529. 88 81529. 88 81529. 88 ·14837979.66 

419 COMMUNITY PROJECTS 15745. 00 -15745.00 12625.00 -3120. 00 -3120.00 ·14841099.66 

422 REAPPRAISAL FUND 91561. 27 958. 22 7265. 36 85254.13 105. 24 85359.37 85359.37 -14755740.29 

424 LG ABATEMENT FUND -14755740.29 

425 POVERTY CREEK FIRE DEPAR'IMENT 121955.98 1615.35 120340 .63 115.03 120455.66 120455.66 -14635284 .63 

426 SIERRA ADMIN. FIRE 119603.15 12175.53 107427. 62 593.51 108021.13 108021.13 -14527263.SO 

427 NAT'L OPIOID SETTLEMENT 6989.50 6989.SO 6989. so 6989. so -14520274. 00 

474 TAXES PAID IN ADVANCE 22032.67 996. 21 23028. 88 23028.88 23028.88 -14497245.12 

477 LODGERS TAX/PROMO FUND 18839. 23 1031.92 400. 00 19471.15 400. 00 19871. 15 19871.15 ·14477373. 97 

481 UNDISTRIBUTED CURRENT TAXES -14477373. 97 

482 UNDISTRIBUTED DELQ TAXES ·14477373. 97 

500 GRANT PROJECTS 70026.80 149359.42 375949.35 -156563 .13 278973 .13 122410. 00 122410.00 -14354963. 97 

502 LEGISLATIVE APPROPRIATIONS 35148.44 -35148.44 25883 .11 -9265. 33 -9265. 33 ·14364229. 30 

506 INTERNAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS -14364229.30 

507 ELECTRONIC MONITORING 9499.66 705. 00 1975.26 8229.40 8229.40 8229.40 • 14355999. 90 

sos DWI PROGRAM FEES 91904. 75 1040.00 156. 89 92787. 86 156.89 92944. 75 92944. 75 -14263055 .15 

509 DWI DISTRIBUTION 34777. 98 4689.33 30088. 65 1425.81 31514.46 31514.46 -14231540. 69 

510 DWI GRANT 1769.SS 16649.30 5235.75 13183 .10 296. 43 13479.53 134 79. 53 ·14218061.16 

511 LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 4000000.00 4000000.00 4 000000. 00 4000000. 00 -10218061.16 

512 LATCF·FEDERAL 3182946. 45 23045. 00 3159901.45 78312.00 3238213 .45 3238213 .45 -697984 7. 71 

548 MENTAL HEALTH (COMM.GRT) 76419. 77 2668.95 80.06 79008. 66 79008. 66 79008. 66 -6900839. OS 

550 UNDERWOOD WATER -6900839. 05 

551 SIERRA SOIL WATER DIST 4108. 32 1916. 75 4108. 32 1916. 75 1916. 75 1916. 75 -6898922.30 

552 SPACEPORT GRT 72018. 26 50294.49 56578.93 65733. 82 65733.82 65733.82 -6833188.48 

553 T OR C SCHOOL 25\ 18356. 62 16764. 83 18859.65 16261. 80 16261. 80 16261. 80 -6816926. 68 

554 CABALL0 WATER 428.20 27 .13 428. 20 27.13 27 .13 27 .13 -6816899.55 

575 CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES 3279. 77 1510. 96 3279.77 1510. 96 1510.96 1510. 96 -6815388. 59 

576 VILLAGE OF WILLIAMSBURG 297. 46 88 .42 297.46 88 .42 88.42 88 .42 -6815300.17 

577 CITY OF ELEPHANT BUTTE 2818.69 2103. 34 2818.69 2103. 34 2103.34 2103.34 -6813196. 83 

591 STATE DEBT SERVICE 9397. 48 2857.66 9397.48 2857. 66 2857. 66 2857. 66 -6810339 .17 

592 CATTLE 424. 08 879. 33 424.08 879. 33 879. 33 879. 33 -6809459. 84 

593 SHEEP, GOATS AND ALPACA 2 .25 2.25 -6809459. 84 

594 EQUINES, SWINE AND RATITES 35.85 62.07 35.85 62 .07 62.07 62.07 -6809397. 77 













Printed 09, Sl, 12 FRIDAY SEPTEMBER 8, 2023 DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION Page l 

I hereby certify that the contents in this LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION Entity 

report are true and correct to the best RECAP AND RECONCILIATION REPORT Period Ending 

of my knowledge and includes all funds. Prepared by 

FUNDi FUND NAME BEGINNING ENDING ADD LESS ADJUSTMENTS ADJUSTED 

CASH BALANCE REVENUES TRANSFERS EXPENDATURES CASH BALANCE OUTSTANDING DEPOSITS IN PER BANK BALANCE PER BANK FUND RUNNING 

CURRENT-FYR TO-DATE TO·DATE TO·DATE FOR PERIOD CHECKS TRANSIT ( + / ·) FOR PERIOD STATEMENT DIFFERENCE DIFFERENCE 

101 CASH ON HAND 360. 00 -360. 00 -360. 00 

103 GENERAL FUND 258. 73 ·258. 73 -618.73 

l 04 LANDFILL FINANCIAL ASSURANCE ·618. 73 

112 GENERAL FUND 4204035. 61 -4204035.61 -4204654. 34 

12 0 GENERAL FUND 5. 00 ·1420.82 -1415.82 19140675.68 -19142091.SO -23346745.84 

401 GENERAL 2855010. 35 662524 .Sl 919446. 04 2598088. 82 18141.32 2616230 .14 2616230.14 ·20730515.70 

402 ROAD DEPARTMENT 163659. 65 58423. 99 157755. 20 64328.44 1961.10 66289. 54 66289. 54 ·20664226 .16 

403 FARM & RANGE 4259. 88 4439.23 -179.35 -179.35 -179.35 -20664405.51 

404 WHITE SANDS MISSILE RANGE 524. 60 812. 25 -287.65 ·287. 65 -287. 65 ·20664693 .16 

4 05 LANDFILL 48458.53 20303.42 15421. 04 53340. 91 53 .80 53394. 71 53394. 71 ·20611298 .45 

4 06 COUNTY INDIGENT 96422.75 100246.26 19002. 54 177666.47 177666 .47 177666.47 ·20433631.98 

407 HILLSBORO FIRE DEPT. 376334.81 67730. 00 9290 .19 434774.62 93 .Ol 434867. 63 434867.63 -19998764.35 

409 ARREY/DERRY FIRE DEPT. 143886. 09 76774. 00 33952. 98 186707. ll 389. 87 187096. 98 187096.98 ·19811667 .37 

410 WINSTON FIRE DEPARTMENT 261388. 45 73703. 00 31020. 76 304070.69 182. 01 304252. 70 304252. 70 -19507414. 67 

411 MONTICELLO FIRE DEPARTMENT 220021. 80 82421.00 52879. 57 249563 .23 168. 96 249732.19 249732.19 ·19257682.48 

412 NMGRT HOSPITAL FUND 58661. 85 176021. 96 143545.27 91138 .54 91138. 54 91138.54 -19166543.94 

413 CA8ALLO FIRE DEPARTMENT 172556.36 77308. 32 75325. 80 l 74538. 88 46. 03 174584.91 174584.91 ·18991959.03 

414 LAS PALOMAS FIRE DEPT 291753. 75 61015. 00 22632. 56 330136 .19 167 .16 330303. 35 330303.35 ·18661655.68 

416 STATE SP PROJECTS 101413. 94 101413. 94 101413. 94 101413. 94 ·18560241. 74 

41 7 STATE CAP PROJECTS 109220. 68 109220. 68 109220. 68 109220.68 -18451021.06 

418 STATE SB PROJECTS 81529. 88 81529. 88 81529.88 81529.88 ·18369491.18 

419 COMMUNITY PROJECTS 18895. 00 -18895.00 -18895. 00 -18895. 00 -18388386 .18 

422 REAPPRAISAL FUND 91561. 27 1745.57 14051.58 79255. 26 108. 07 79363. 33 79363. 33 -18309022. 85 

424 LG ABATEMENT FUND -18309022.85 

425 POVERTY CREEK FIRE DEPARTMENT 121955.98 58865.00 34006.20 146814. 78 146814. 78 146814.78 ·18162208.07 

426 SIERRA ADMIN. FIRE 119603 .15 50138. 00 13065 .13 156676. 02 40 .Ol 156716. 03 156716. 03 • 18005492. 04 

427 NAT'L OPIOID SETTLEMENT 6989. 50 21124. 73 28114.23 28114. 23 28114.23 -17977377.81 

428 COUNTY LIVESTOCK LOSS AUTHORITY 149861.49 14 9861. 4 9 14 9861. 49 14 9861. 49 • l 7827516. 32 

474 TAXES PAID IN ADVANCE 22032 .67 2774. 25 24806. 92 24806. 92 24806.92 ·17802709.40 

477 LODGERS TAX/PROMO FUND 18839.23 1405.53 400. 00 19844. 76 19844. 76 19844. 76 -17782864. 64 

4 81 UNDISTRIBUTED CURRENT TAXES -17782864. 64 

482 UNDISTRIBUTED DELQ TAXES -17782864. 64 

500 GRANT PROJECTS 70026. 80 309789.52 520039.80 ·140223 .48 40965.49 -99257.99 -99257. 99 ·17882122. 63 

502 LEGISLATIVE APPROPRIATIONS 206644 .14 36064. 33 170579. 81 170579. 81 170579.81 ·17711542.82 

506 INTERNAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS -17711542.82 

507 ELECTRONIC MONITORING 9499. 66 755.00 1975. 26 8279.40 8279.40 8279.40 ·17703263.42 

508 DWI PROGRAM FEES 91904. 75 2815. 00 1633.60 93086 .15 200. 00 93286 .15 93286.15 ·17609977.27 

509 DWI DISTRIBUTION 34777. 98 11295. 01 23482.97 258 .14 23741.ll 23741.ll -17586236.16 

510 DWI GRANT 1769.55 16649. 30 9878. 00 8540.85 83.66 8624. 51 8624. 51 -17577611. 65 

Sll LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 4000000.00 4000000. 00 4000000. 00 4000000. 00 -13577611. 65 

512 LATCF·FEDERAL 3182946 .45 3450600. 00 46871. 82 6586674. 63 6586674. 63 6586674. 63 -6990937. 02 

548 MENTAL HEALTH (COMM.GRT) 76419. 77 6727. 28 201. 81 82945. 24 82945.24 82945.24 -6907991. 78 

550 UNDERWOOD WATER -6907991. 78 

551 SIERRA SOIL WATER DIST 4108. 32 2513.40 6025. 07 596. 65 596. 65 596. 65 -6907395.13 

552 SPACEPORT GRT 72018. 26 126691. 97 107656. 49 91053. 74 91053. 74 91053. 74 -6816341. 39 

553 T OR C SCHOOL 251 18356. 62 42230. 66 35885.52 24701. 76 24701. 76 24701. 76 • 6791639. 63 

554 CA8ALLO WATER 428. 20 210.86 455.33 183. 73 183. 73 183. 73 ·6791455.90 

575 CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES 3279. 77 1806. 96 4790.73 296. 00 296. 00 296. 00 ·6791159. 90 

576 VILLAGE OF WILLIAMSBURG 297.46 148.49 385.88 60 .07 60 .07 60.07 ·6791099. 83 

577 CITY OF ELEPHANT BUTTE 2818. 69 2859. so 4922.03 756 .16 756 .16 756 .16 ·6790343. 67 

591 STATE DEBT SERVICE 9397.48 4035.42 12255 .14 1177. 76 1177. 76 1177.76 -6789165. 91 

592 CATTLE 424. 08 879.33 1303 .41 -6789165 .91 

593 SHEEP, GOATS AND ALPACA 2 .25 2 .25 -6789165. 91 





















































































































































August 30, 2023 

Dear County Managers, 

County governments are a leading voice in the intergovernmental 
partnership with federal lands management agencies. We work with 
officials from all levels of government, private stakeholders and other 
interested parties to reduce fuel loads on federal lands, prudently develop 
our natural resources to meet the nation’s economic needs, improve local 
economies, enhance recreational access to public lands and conserve our 
lands and waters for future generations.  

Understanding our unique role, Congress has invested record sums in 
programs to support public lands counties—including Payments In-Lieu 
of Taxes (PILT), Secure Rural Schools (SRS), and other revenue sharing 
programs—in recent years, while also granting new authorities to federal 
lands agencies to broaden the scope, pace and scale of their on-the-
ground resource management work with local governments.  

To truly benefit from these unique opportunities and investments, 
counties must share lessons learned to educate government officials and 
the public about the critical county contribution to sustainable resource 
management and best practices for developing and enhancing 
collaborative partnerships. Therefore, the National Association of 
Counties (NACo) and the Western Interstate Region (WIR) Boards of 
Directors are establishing a National Center for Public Lands Counties 
(The Center).  The Center will be governed by a body consisting of the WIR 
Executive Committee, the NACo Public Lands Policy Steering Committee 
Chair and Vice Chairs, the state association executive from the WIR 
Immediate Past President’s home state, and the NACo CEO/Executive 
Director. The governing body will meet on a regular basis to provide 
updates to county officials on the Center’s progress and discuss the 
Center’s financial health, research priorities and media efforts.   

The Center will weave together the narrative around public lands counties 
and the national interest in our prosperity by showing how public lands 
are interconnected with the country’s needs: for example, a wildfire on 
federal land near a major water source can jeopardize water quality in our 
nation’s large urban communities. The Center will give public lands 
counties their best opportunity to share these stories with their peers, the 
media, think tanks and other key players to demonstrate how prosperous 
public lands counties create a prosperous America. The Center will also 
utilize digital media, such as podcasts and video interviews, and develop 



written county profiles focused on: 

▪ County partnerships with federal agencies, states, tribes and other counties to
reduce wildfire risk, responsibly develop energy and minerals, improve public
access to federal lands, protect watersheds, conserve species and their habitat,
and protect our national parks and other natural treasures

▪ County investments of PILT, SRS and other natural resource revenue payments
to benefit their citizens and surrounding public lands

▪ The different economic drivers in rural vs. urban public lands counties
▪ Development and implementation of county natural resource management plans

and baseline socioeconomic data for environmental analyses
▪ Resource values of federal lands compared to nearby privately owned lands
▪ Meeting the unique challenges facing public lands counties, such as affordable

housing for residents and federal employees, ensuring a stable tax base to deliver
critical services and managing infrastructure on federal lands

New Mexico’s counties have a unique opportunity to invest in the Center.  NACo staff, 
state associations of counties executives and county officials set a fundraising goal of 
$15 million to hire the necessary staff to conduct this critical research and keep the 
Center on a sustainable financial course.  Counties are being asked to consider a one-
time, voluntary pledge to support this initiative.  If we are successful, this initial 
investment will pay dividends for generations to come.  

This initiative was brought before the NMC Board of Directors for consideration in June 
and officially endorsed at their August meeting. They recognized the value of this effort 
and have authorized NMC to request your support. Attached are invoices for your county 
to consider. We are asking you to consider a contribution that is the equivalent of 1% of 
what your county received from the Local Assistance and Tribal Consistency Fund 
(LATCF). It is important to note that counties cannot expend LATCF funds for this 
initiative, it was only used to determine proposed contributions. Contributions for the 
Center should be provided through each county’s General Fund.  

Should you have any questions or need additional information, please reach out to Joy 
Esparsen at (505) 660-9629 or jesparsen@nmcounties.org. 

Sincerely, 

Mark Cage Joy Esparsen 
President Executive Director 

Jhonathan Aragon Phillip Trujillo 
NACo Board Member NACo Board Member 

Clay Keisling Seth Martin 
WIR Board Member WIR Board Member 

mailto:jesparsen@nmcounties.org


National Center for Public Lands Counties 

County governments are a leading voice in the intergovernmental partnership in responsible 
resource management. Understanding our unique role as co-regulators and conveners, Congress 
has consistently supported appropriations for critical programs like Payments In-Lieu of Taxes 
(PILT) and Secure Rural Schools (SRS) and granted new authorities to federal lands agencies to 
broaden the scope, pace and scale of their on-the-ground resource management work with local 
governments.  

To truly benefit from these unique opportunities and investments, counties must accelerate our 
evidence-based research, peer information exchanges, and overall understanding of our lessons 
learned, emerging trends analysis, and priority public policy issues.  

The NACo and WIR Boards of Directors therefore established the National Center for Public 
Lands Counties (The Center) to give public lands counties an enhanced opportunity to 
demonstrate how prosperous public lands counties create a prosperous America. The Center 
will utilize traditional and new media—such as podcasts and video interviews—to tell these 
stories and develop detailed, individual research and written county profiles focused on: 

• County partnerships with federal agencies, states, tribes and other counties to
reduce wildfire risk, responsibly develop energy and minerals, provide stewardship
for recreational use of federal lands, improve watersheds, conserve species and
their habitat, and protect our national parks and other natural treasures

• County investments of PILT, SRS and other natural resource revenue payments to
benefit residents, visitors and surrounding public lands

• The different economic drivers in rural vs. urban public lands counties
• Development and implementation of county natural resource management plans

and baseline socioeconomic data for environmental analyses
• Resource values of federal lands compared to nearby privately owned lands
• Meeting the unique challenges facing public lands counties, such as housing

affordability for residents and federal employees, ensuring a stable tax base to
deliver critical services, and managing infrastructure on federal lands

For the Center to meet its mission and serve as a long-term tool for public lands counties, a 
voluntary investment of $15 million over the next two years, financed through voluntary 
contributions from county general funds, is needed to hire the necessary staff to conduct this 
critical research and keep the Center on a sustainable financial course. Initially, the Center will 
need 1-2 hard-working, passionate and talented writers who can help tell the county story. The 
Center will report to the NACo and WIR Board of Directors on its financial health and issue an 
annual report at the annual WIR Conference. 

The Center’s governing body will be made up of the following individuals within NACo 
leadership: 

• WIR Executive Committee (President, 1st VP, 2nd VP, Immediate Past President)
• NACo Public Lands Steering Committee Chair



• NACo Public Lands Steering Committee Subcommittee Chairs
• NACo West Region Representative
• NACo Executive Director
• Executive Director from WIR Immediate Past President’s home state
• NACo Public Lands Legislative Director and WIR Liaison, serving as NACo staff

liaison to the governing board

The Center’s governing board will also be empowered to develop an annual workplan based on 
the research priorities selected by the WIR Board of Directors and NACo Public Lands Steering 
Committee. At the WIR Annual Conference each May, the WIR Board of Directors and the NACo 
Public Lands Steering Committee will review the activities and performance of the Center and 
consider and adopt the proposed workplan for the next year.  

In order to leverage the expertise of NACo’s public lands membership, the governing board will 
also have the ability to appoint research subcommittees made up of county officials, based on 
the research priorities selected by the WIR Board of Directors and NACo Public Lands Steering 
Committee, to coordinate and oversee the research efforts of the National Center. Research 
work conducted by the National Center will be non-partisan, aligned with NACo policy and 
priorities and will not directly conflict with the interests of any county. 

NACo staff contact: Jonathan Shuffield, NACo Legislative Director for Public Lands, at 
512.965.7268 or jshuffield@naco.org  

mailto:jshuffield@naco.org


 

Federal Land Revenues  
for  

New Mexico Counties 

New Mexico has a unique relationship with the federal government when it 
comes to land ownership. In some counties, more than 75% of the land is 
owned by a federal agency or held in trust. Federal lands cannot be taxed 
but may create a demand for services such as fire protection, police coop-
eration, emergency medical response, search and rescue, or longer roads 
to skirt a federal property. Counties, particularly in the western United 
States where federal land ownership is significant, must continuously  
educate members of Congress on the importance of appropriate federal 
compensation to maintain these services.  
 
Some of the critical federal programs that offset these reduced revenues 
and additional services include Payment in Lieu of Taxes, Forest Reserve/
Secure Rural Schools & Community Self-Determination, and the Local  
Assistance & Tribal Consistency Fund. The following background provides 
information on the history, distributions, and current allocations of these 
programs. 



Overview and History 
The PILT Program provides compensation to local governments for losses in property taxes on specific lands  
administered by Department of the Interior agencies, including the Bureau of Land Management, the National Park 
Service, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, and the Bureau of Reclamation. In addition, PILT payments cover lands 
administered by the U.S. Forest Service, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, and a few additional specific federal land 
holdings.  PILT payments are not provided for tribal lands held in trust by the federal government.  
 
The original law is Public Law 94–565, dated  
October 20, 1976. This law was rewritten and 
amended by Public Law 97–258 on September 
13, 1982 and codified at Chapter 69, Title 31 of 
the United States Code. The law recognizes the 
financial impact of the inability of local govern-
ments to collect property taxes on federally 
owned land.  
 
Congress has repeatedly debated the level of 
PILT funding to compensate counties. Currently, 
compensation for PILT funding in New Mexico 
averages .48 cents per acre, far below the  
average that could be collected if the land was 
privately owned. The authorized level of PILT 
payments is calculated using a complex formula 
and no precise dollar figure can be given in  
advance for each year’s PILT authorized level.  
 

 
 

COUNTY 2021 2022 2023 

Bernalillo County  $233,119 $241,578  $254,944 

Catron County  $681,581 $716,261  $790,546 

Chaves County  $3,426,876 $3,518,008  $3,767,947 

Cibola County  $2,031,373 $2,110,323  $2,247,642 

Colfax County  $181,687 $191,590  $201,140 

De Baca County  $121,463 $124,627  $134,329 

Dona Ana County  $3,384,416 $3,467,870  $3,702,535 

Eddy County  $3,805,603 $3,902,194  $4,182,371 

Grant County  $2,296,259 $2,394,294  $2,620,578 

Guadalupe County  $177,013 $181,477  $196,005 

Harding County  $118,860 $124,448  $133,860 

Hidalgo County  $753,461 $758,963  $805,920 

Lea County  $1,203,243 $1,232,352  $1,322,901 

Lincoln County  $1,964,654 $2,021,081  $2,140,440 

Los Alamos County  $96,754 $99,717  $105,899 

Luna County  $ 2,124,639 $2,177,647  $2,336,477 

McKinley County  $1,044,031 $1,100,976  $1,169,583 

Mora County  $274,149 $294,119  $314,806 

Otero County  $3,530,901 $3,650,612  $3,872,780 

Quay County  $5,152 $5,278  $5,647 

Rio Arriba County  $2,592,269 $2,761,206  $3,027,885 

Roosevelt County  $30,756 $31,502  $33,917 

San Juan County  $2,459,114 $2,525,067  $2,706,433 

San Miguel County  $933,177 $982,005  $1,044,606 

Sandoval County  $2,460,430 $2,540,003  $2,710,336 

Santa Fe County  $820,311 $847,339  $896,578 

Sierra County  $1,292,264 $1,349,272  $1,540,488 

Socorro County  $1,546,883 $1,623,020  $1,610,953 

Taos County  $1,939,135 $2,004,800  $2,129,260 

Torrance County  $352,191 $385,684  $407,530 

Union County  $167,819 $172,170  $184,689 

Valencia County  $90,384 $94,200  $100,736 

Totals $     42,139,967 $43,629,683 $46,699,761 

Source: https://www.nbc.gov/pilt/counties.cfm 

PILT PAYMENTS IN NEW MEXICO 

Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT) 
Federal Agency:  Department of Interior (https://www.doi.gov/pilt) 
Distributed:  Annually in June, Direct to Counties 
Allocation: $46,699,761.00 (FY23) 
Purposes:  General Fund Revenue 

Five factors  
affect the calculation  

of a payment to a given county:  
 

1) the number of acres eligible  

2) the county’s population,  

3) payments in prior years from other 

specified federal land payment  

programs, 

4) state laws directing payments to a 

particular government purpose, and  

5) the Consumer Price Index as  

calculated by the Bureau of Labor 

Statistics.  

 
If the appropriation for PILT funding is 
less than the full authorized amount, 
each county receives a prorated  
payment.  

https://www.nbc.gov/pilt/counties.cfm
https://www.doi.gov/pilt


 

 COUNTY TOTAL ACRES 
PAYMENT PER 

ACRE 
COUNTY TOTAL ACRES 

PAYMENT PER 
ACRE 

Bernalillo County          89,777 $0.35 McKinley County       416,213 $0.36 

Catron County     2,721,911 $3.44 Mora County       115,610 $0.37 

Chaves County     1,216,379 $0.32 Otero County    1,512,025 $0.39 

Cibola County        788,624 $0.35 Quay County            1,811 $0.32 

Colfax County          74,404 $0.37 Rio Arriba County    2,017,327 $0.67 

De Baca County          44,423 $0.33 Roosevelt County          10,937 $0.32 

Dona Ana County     1,183,275 $0.32 San Juan County       861,198 $0.32 

Eddy County     1,574,296 $0.38 San Miguel County       395,730 $0.38 

Grant County     1,161,210 $0.44 Sandoval County       908,547 $0.34 

Guadalupe County          64,405 $0.33 Santa Fe County       305,642 $0.34 

Harding County          71,900 $0.54 Sierra County    1,301,207 $0.84 

Hidalgo County        822,896 $1.02 Socorro County    1,561,055 $0.97 

Lea County        424,419 $0.32 Taos County       763,685 $0.36 

Lincoln County        921,748 $0.43 Torrance County       161,438 $0.40 

Los Alamos County          35,200 $0.33 Union County          59,068 $0.32 

Luna County        747,187 $0.32 Valencia County          35,960 $0.36 

   Totals 22,369,507 Acres $0.48 Average 

PILT TOTAL ACRES AND PAYMENTS PER ACRE FOR FY23 

Source: https://www.nbc.gov/pilt/counties.cfm 

Federal Agency:  Department of Interior (https://www.doi.gov/ocl/secure-rural-schools) 
Distributed:  Annually in the Spring; Forest Reserve Payments by NM Department of Finance 
Allocation: $9,588,526.67 (FY22) 
Purposes: Shared revenue split between forested counties and school districts based on Title I, II, III 

allocations 

Forest Reserve Payments 

Overview and History 
In 1891, the President of the United States was given the authority to create Forest Reserves. In the subsequent six 
years over 40 million acres of forest land was placed in Forest Reserves. Across the west, rural county commission-
ers and school leaders expressed grave concerns over the withdrawal of large blocks of land from settlement, eco-
nomic development, and taxation within their counties. Many communities were also highly dependent on these 
lands for grazing, timber, and water. In 1897, Congress addressed these concerns by specifying that Forest Reserve 
funding would be provided for three purposes:  
 

1. Improve and protect the forests in the Reserve.  
2. Secure favorable conditions of water flows.  
3. Furnish a continual supply of timber for the use and necessities of citizens of the United States.  

 
In 1905, the Forest Reserves were renamed National Forests and the U.S. Forest Service was founded to manage 
the lands. The federal government has continued to set aside additional lands and by the mid 1900’s over 153 mil-
lion acres had been set aside as National Forests. President Theodore Roosevelt and Gifford Pinchot, Chief of the 
Forest Service were so concerned that rural county opposition would politically compromise the future of the U.S. 
National Forests, that they proposed a new concept – revenue sharing. In 1908, Congress approved a bill that speci-
fied that 25% of all revenues raised on National Forests would be sent to counties which contained these forests to 
be used for county roads and public schools.  
 
From 1908 until the late 1980’s this “revenue sharing” system worked well for forested counties and schools by 
providing a steady and significant income stream. By the late 1980’s changes in national environmental policy and 
laws caused most national forests to discontinue or drastically cut grazing, timber management, and mining. As a 
result, U.S. Forest Service revenues declined very rapidly as did the 25% Forest Revenue receipts to counties and 
schools. By 1998 these revenues had declined by over 70% raising significant concerns that certain forested com-
munities would cease to exist. 
 
 
 

https://www.nbc.gov/pilt/counties.cfm
https://www.doi.gov/ocl/secure-rural-schools


Secure Rural Schools & Community Self-Determination Act (SRS) 
 
In December 2000, the Secure Rural Schools and Community Self-Determination Act (SRS) was signed into law in 
response to this depletion of shared revenues. This bill provided Title I payments to counties (for roads) and to  
public schools, it also provided payments to counties to invest in Title II Forest Improvement Projects on National 
Forests and Title III for specific projects and programs in counties such as search and rescue reimbursement and 
community wildfire protection plan development. The Act also authorized the counties to create, in cooperation 
with the USFS, collaborative Resource Advisory Committees. This Act was enormously successful in that it restored 
county and school revenues to their 1980’s and early 90’s levels, resulting in restoration of public services and 
school programs. 
 
Since the “Forest Reserve” payments were incorporated into SRS, Congress has not been consistent in its commit-
ment to maintain this funding: 
 

2007 – 1-year extension of SRS is approved  
2008 – 5-year extension with a new funding formula and a 10% reduction each year.  
2012 – 1-year extension with a 5% reduction in funding from 2011.  
2013 – 1-year extension is approved with an additional 5% reduction in funding.  
2015 – 2-year extension is approved for FY 2014-2015 with another 5% reduction each year.  
2016 – Congress fails to approve reauthorization and SRS expires.  
2018 – 2-year reauthorization of SRS for FY-17 & FY-18 with a 5% reduction each year. 
2019 – 2-year reauthorization of SRS for FY-19 & FY-20 with another 5% annual reduction.  
2021 – Reauthorization for FY-21, FY-22 & FY-23 at 2017 amounts (w/o annual reductions). 
2023 – This is a critical year to secure continued reauthorization of SRS 

County FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 

Bernalillo  $52,357.39  $58,981.24  $53,484.32 

Catron  $2,811,153.66  $3,028,379.26  $3,019,503.71 

Chaves  $33,758.28  $39,687.56  $39,973.85 

Cibola  $445,527.79  $451,981.18  $481,455.40 

Colfax  $62,995.18  $66,068.12  $66,821.49 

Eddy  $62,398.77  $64,659.01  $69,918.39 

Grant  $635,902.21  $709,208.00  $687,529.41 

Hidalgo  $59,749.52  $61,173.23  $58,933.19 

Lincoln  $284,200.04  $341,172.41  $304,855.25 

Los Alamos  $8,300.71  $9,818.54  $9,470.95 

McKinley  $272,795.28  $268,929.99  $260,747.08 

Mora  $105,935.60  $89,661.96  $81,540.35 

Otero  $586,040.34  $643,060.13  $612,929.07 

Rio Arriba $1,539,184.95 $1,523,245.20 $1,544,230.46 

Sandoval  $266,013.08  $282,870.71  $258,872.69 

San Miguel  $371,704.52  $369,560.82  $308,347.14 

Santa Fe  $98,630.36  $117,015.29  $105,682.38 

Sierra  $284,316.46  $264,666.96  $310,372.71 

Socorro  $639,143.21  $693,967.03  $612,714.94 

Taos  $461,402.00  $508,442.66  $516,443.41 

Torrance  $207,673.51  $188,057.27  $167,496.93 

Valencia  $19,247.67  $19,527.87  $17,203.55 

Totals $9,308,430.53 $9,800,134.44 $9,588,526.67 

FOREST RESERVE/SRS PAYMENTS IN NEW MEXICO 

It is important to note that SRS  

funding is an offset in the PILT  

formula. When Congress did not 

reauthorize SRS funding in 2016, 

the majority of the PILT funding 

was automatically allocated to 

the Pacific Northwest states.  

 

In New Mexico alone, SRS funding 

dropped from $9.2 million to 

$725,705 and the combined losses 

of SRS and PILT totaled over $12.7 

million. 

Source: https://www.nmdfa.state.nm.us/local-government/budget-finance-bureau/financial-distributions/  

https://www.nmdfa.state.nm.us/local-government/budget-finance-bureau/financial-distributions/


Overview and History 
The American Rescue Plan appropriated $2 billion 
to Treasury across fiscal years 2022 and 2023 to 
provide payments to eligible revenue sharing 
counties and eligible Tribal governments, and 
Section 103 of Division LL of the Consolidated 
Appropriations Act, 2023 made additional fund-
ing available from LATCF funds unclaimed by 
eligible revenue sharing counties after January 
31, 2023 or unobligated Treasury administrative 
funds, across fiscal years 2023 and 2024 for  
payments to eligible revenue sharing consolidat-
ed governments, for use on any governmental 
purpose except for a lobbying activity. Treasury 
determined the allocation for eligible revenue 
sharing consolidated governments to be approx-
imately $10.5 million in total for fiscal years 2023 
and 2024. Eligible recipients must submit a  
request for funding in the Treasury Submission 
Portal to receive their payments, and further  
instructions can be found on the Treasury  
website. There is no pre-approval process for 
projects funded by the program. Recipients must 
submit periodic reports to Treasury on their  
expenditures.   
 
The purpose of the LATCF program is to serve 
as a general revenue enhancement program. 
Under this program, recipients have broad  
discretion on uses of funds, similar to the ways in 
which they may use funds generated from their 
own local revenue sources. Specifically,  
recipients may use these funds on any govern-
mental purpose other than a lobbying activity. 
Recipients may maintain or expand public  
services – such as health, educational, housing, 
and public safety services – to their communities 
with these funds. Recipients may also invest in 
infrastructure – from roads and bridges to water 
infrastructure – to facilitate economic develop-
ment, improve health outcomes, or transition 
their communities to clean energy. Recipients 
may also invest in restoring and bolstering  
government capacity, such as increasing the size 
of their government workforce or investing in 
improvements in service delivery, like technolo-
gy infrastructure and data analysis resources, 
that will improve delivery of services to their 
communities for years to come. 

Recipient Name FY22 Allocation FY23 Allocation Subtotal 

Bernalillo County $216,651.65 $216,651.65 $433,303.30 

Catron County $1,119,300.00 $1,119,300.00 $2,238,600.00 

Chaves County $3,930,445.20 $3,930,445.20 $7,860,890.40 

Cibola County $3,151,902.50 $3,151,902.50 $6,303,805.00 

Colfax County $246,650.21 $246,650.21 $493,300.42 

De Baca County $142,034.75 $142,034.75 $284,069.50 

Doña Ana County $4,729,151.30 $4,729,151.30 $9,458,302.60 

Eddy County $3,775,242.50 $3,775,242.50 $7,550,485.00 

Grant County $4,643,810.07 $4,643,810.07 $9,287,620.14 

Guadalupe County $257,404.61 $257,404.61 $514,809.22 

Harding County $191,700.00 $191,700.00 $383,400.00 

Hidalgo County $1,222,200.00 $1,222,200.00 $2,444,400.00 

Lea County $1,017,753.95 $1,017,753.95 $2,035,507.90 

Lincoln County $2,947,364.06 $2,947,364.06 $5,894,728.12 

Los Alamos County $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $100,000.00 

Luna County $2,986,249.12 $2,986,249.12 $5,972,498.24 

McKinley County $1,663,360.11 $1,663,360.11 $3,326,720.22 

Mora County $480,256.88 $480,256.88 $960,513.76 

Otero County $4,834,134.01 $4,834,134.01 $9,668,268.02 

Quay County $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $100,000.00 

Rio Arriba County $6,000,000.00 $6,000,000.00 $12,000,000.00 

Roosevelt County $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $100,000.00 

San Juan County $2,753,593.41 $2,753,593.41 $5,507,186.82 

San Miguel County $1,617,426.87 $1,617,426.87 $3,234,853.74 

Sandoval County $1,452,568.50 $1,452,568.50 $2,905,137.00 

Santa Fe County $488,397.71 $488,397.71 $976,795.42 

Sierra County $3,450,600.00 $3,450,600.00 $6,901,200.00 

Socorro County $4,893,300.00 $4,893,300.00 $9,786,600.00 

Taos County $3,052,114.01 $3,052,114.01 $6,104,228.02 

Torrance County $645,124.16 $645,124.16 $1,290,248.32 

Union County $188,859.56 $188,859.56 $377,719.12 

Valencia County $115,221.98 $115,221.98 $230,443.96 

Totals $62,362,817.12 $62,362,817.12 $124,725,634.24 

Source: https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Local-Assistance-Tribal-Consistency-Fund-Allocations-Eligible-Revenue-Sharing-Consolidated-Governments.csv  

Local Assistance & Tribal Consistency Fund (LATCF) 

Federal Agency:  US Treasury  
Distributed:  Special Congressional ARPA Appropriation Limited to 2 Years 
 1st tranche September 29, 2022 – 2nd tranche available now 
Allocation: Counties must apply for funding through the US Treasury LATCF portal  
Purposes: General Fund with some restrictions (lobbying) 

LATCF PAYMENTS IN NEW MEXICO 

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Local-Assistance-Tribal-Consistency-Fund-Allocations-Eligible-Revenue-Sharing-Consolidated-Governments.csv


COUNTY OF SIERRA

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

1712 N. DATE ST., SUITED

TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NM 87901

VR Z 3-tJ(J I NO. ___________ _
PETITION FOR VACATION

FOR COUNTY ROAD

The undersigned hereby make(s) application to the Board of County Commissioners of
the County of Siena, State of New Mexico, to discontinue the portion of the highway in said 
county described as follows: 

01(<. 5:Jru!- > k'?hen!! i} Cy1\S h" . .f�.\-- � ")\\.1 fn>ft'1r > {�,
tt+�o: �z:�.::�r;�Zt-f� �· 

In support of said petition for vacation, petitioneits) states as follows: 2� 
I. The portion of said highway sought to be discontinued passes through and over

and/or is adjacent to lands owned by petitioner(s). 
2. The portion of said highway sought to be discontinued is not needed or the repairs of

the same are burdensome and in excess of the benefits there� I . 3. Further reasons: 7'46� rc.J. >t'M.:> 4',,C... Ytt\1 f!d$t� aM-\� l1Ntr

1.,1,$e,/ i,r: RJ4,?,/a,J,r,/ 13/ ±h, ('� Ol itloref...;p , do ()A.£
y..e,tl-s 4s .('O\, b,M,e$S. -a:;� aJJg,{ �\AM<--�(,. al��

4. This application is made pursuant to Section 67-5-4 N.M.S.A� 978. �� yrf ic_

Dated: dWM-- z,( 1 -t...-o z,:, __ l:L. �H-11 w JM(i,,,
S�OF PETITIOi{ER 

NAME OF PETITIONER (Ty� or Printed)
l-Z.." i..ittCM. �
c.ckr C.'\"'cek , T,c. 7(S'-=,\-z... 

MAILING ADDRESS OF PET TIONER 

AGENT OR ATTORNEY 

















QUITCLAIM DEED OF VACATION 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 67-5-4 (1905) provides the procedure for 
discontinuance of public roads by Boards of County Commissioners; and, 

WHEREAS, Garrett W. Taylor, whose address is 120 Litton Lane., Cedar Creek, TX 
78612, requested the Sierra County Board of County Commissioners to vacate the public road 
described below; and,  

WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 67-5-4 (1905) a board of commissioners 
of three freeholders of Sierra County viewed the public road described below; and  

WHEREAS, the board of commissioners of three freeholders recommended 
discontinuance of the public road described below; and 

WHEREAS, during a duly noticed public meeting held on September 13, 2023, the Sierra 
County Board of County Commissioners, ordered vacated, the following described public road in 
Sierra County, New Mexico: 

 SOUTH HALF OF OAK STREET ADJACENT TO 
LOTS 4 THRU 7, BLOCK V KINGSTON TOWNSITE 

AND 
SOUTH HALF OF OAK STREET ADJACENT TO 

VACATED CEDAR STREET ADJACENT TO LOT 7, BLOCK V KINGSTON TOWNSITE 

NOW, THERFORE, the County of Sierra hereby quitclaims, vacates and abandons the above-
described public road in Sierra County, New Mexico: 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County, New 
Mexico, have caused this instrument to be signed for and in behalf of said Sierra County, New 
Mexico on this 13th day of September, 2023. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

OF SIERRA COUNTY 

__________________________ 

TRAVIS DAY, CHAIR 

__________________________ 

JAMES PAXON, VICE-CHAIR 

__________________________ 

HANK HOPKINS, COMMISSIONER 

ATTEST BY:  

______________________________________ 

SHELLY TRUJILLO, COUNTY CLERK  























BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF SIERRA COUNTY 

 
In the Matter of the Partial Vacation of 
Miranda’s Highland Retreat Unit No. 1, 
Lots 26 ,37, 38, 45, 47 and Park. 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION 
 
 THIS MATTER came before the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County 
(“the Board”) on September 13, 2023, and was held pursuant to Robert and Jennafer Daugherty’s 
Application to Vacate Lots 26, 37, 38, 45, 47 and the Park of the Miranda’s Highland Retreat 
Unit No. 1 Subdivision.   
 
The Board, having considered the documents in the record before it and the testimony of staff 
FINDS: 
 
Findings of Fact 

1. Notice of the special meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Sierra County, New 
Mexico (the “Board”) on September 9, 2023, at which the hearing on the application 
to partially vacate lots 26, 37, 38, 45, 47 and the Park in the Miranda Highlands Retreat 
Subdivision was published according to New Mexico Statutes and the Sierra County 
Subdivision Regulations, as amended (“Subdivision Regulations”). 

2. The Sierra County Subdivision Regulations require the Board of County 
Commissioners determine whether to grant, grant with conditions or deny the partial 
vacation after consideration of the comments and testimony presented at the public 
hearing on whether the partial vacation will adversely affect the interests of persons on 
contiguous land or of persons within the subdivision.  

3. County GIS Coordinator Keith Whitney provided testimony at the hearing before the 
Board of County Commissioners regarding the basis for the request for the partial 
vacation. 

4. Keith Whitney additionally testified that such partial vacation would not be adverse to 
the interests of the adjoining property owners. 

5. The County did not receive any letters in opposition to the partial vacation, nor was 
anyone from the public in attendance at the hearing to speak in opposition to the partial 
vacation.   

Conclusions of Law 

The following conclusions of law are cumulative, but are severable and independent of 
each other. 

A. The several counties are the entities charged with regulating subdivisions within 
the boundaries of their respective counties.  NMSA 1978, § 47-6-9 (2005). 

B. The Board of County Commissioners is the body that exercises the powers of a 
county as a body politic and corporate.  NMSA 1978, § 4-38-1 (1876). 



 2 

C. The Board takes notice that the Subdivision Ordinance was adopted according to 
New Mexico statutory authority and duly recorded in the records of the Clerk of Sierra County. 

D. Any final plat filed in the office of the county clerk may be vacated or a portion of 
the final plat may be vacated if:(1) the owners of the land proposed to be vacated sign an 
acknowledged statement, declaring the final plat or a portion of the final plat to be vacated; and 
(2) the statement is approved by the board of county commissioners of the county within whose 
platting authority the vacated portion of the subdivision is located.  NMSA 1978 § 47-6-7 (1996). 

E. In approving the vacation of all or a part of a final plat, the board of county 
commissioners shall determine whether or not the vacation will adversely affect the interests of 
persons on contiguous land or persons within the subdivision being vacated.  Id. 

F.  Based on the testimony proffered at the public hearing regarding the basis for the 
request for partial vacation, and the absence of testimony that the partial vacation would adversely 
affect the interests of persons on contiguous land or persons within the subdivision being vacated, 
the Board finds no basis upon which to deny or conditionally approve the partial vacation request.   

 

Decision 

IT IS, THEREFORE ORDERED that Board unconditionally approves the partial vacation of 
Lots 26 ,37, 38, 45, 47 and the Park of the Miranda’s Highland Retreat Unit No. 1 Subdivision, 
and orders that the approved statement declaring the vacation of a portion of the final plat be filed 
in the office of the Sierra County Clerk, and that the County Clerk shall mark the final plat with 
the words “Partially Vacated” and refer on the final plat to the volume and page on which the 
statement of partial vacation is recorded. 
 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Travis Day, Chairman 
 
______________________________________ 
 James Paxon, Vice-Chairman  
 
______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 
 
Attest: 
 
______________________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 
 

 
Date:_________________________________ 











































































2023 Regular Local Election MOU 

Page 1 of 6 

NEW MEXICO 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

AND 

SIERRA COUNTY 

 
This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING ("Agreement" or "MOU") is entered into by and 
between the Office of the Secretary of State (“Office” or “Agency”) and Sierra County (“County”), 
(collectively, “the Parties”) as of the last date of execution by the Parties below. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Regular Local Election (“Election”) is to be held statewide on November 7th, 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency, as required under the New Mexico Election Code, is responsible to pay all costs 
of the Election, including reasonable costs incurred by each County Clerk; (§1-11-19 Costs of Elections; 
Election Fund) 
 
WHEREAS, the Agency has been appropriated funds from the New Mexico State Legislature to pay for 
the cost of conducting and/or administering a Statewide Election; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is in the interest of both Parties for the Office to sub-grant appropriated funds to each 
County prior to a given Election with the intent of such funds to cover the costs of running an Election. 
 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
THEREFORE, the Parties agree that this MOU is entered expressly and solely for the purpose of 
providing state-appropriated funds to Sierra County to cover the costs of conducting and administering the 
Regular Local Election. 
 
1. RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
The Office shall: 

 
A. Issue to Sierra County a warrant drawn through the New Mexico Department of Finance and 

Administration (DFA) at least ninety (90) days prior to Election Day in the amount of Fifteen 
Thousand dollars ($15,000.00) for projected costs that the Parties agree will be incurred in the 
administration of the Regular Local Election. 

 
The County shall: 
 

A. Finalize and sign this MOU at least sixty (60) days prior to Election Day.  
B. Use the appropriated funds in accordance with the New Mexico Election Code and in 

compliance with the reimbursable expenses outlined in Appendix A of this Agreement. 
C. Provide to the Office, no later than forty-five (45) days following Election Day, a full accounting 

of expenses incurred during the Election and provide to the Office all invoices, receipts, and copies 
of warrants paid by the county during the cycle. 



2023 Regular Local Election MOU 

Page 2 of 6 

D. Return any unused funds to the Office upon completion of election-related activity no later than 
forty-five (45) days following Election Day.  

 
2. ADDITIONAL REIMBURSEMENTS  
 
If Election costs incurred to a County exceed the initial amount provided through this MOU, the County 
may request reimbursement no later than forty-five (45) days after Election Day using a prescribed form 
provided by the Office with a description detailing the additional costs and their relevance to the Election. 
Additional costs are not guaranteed to be reimbursed but shall be reimbursed by the Office if such costs are 
deemed to be eligible expenses and if funds are available. 
 
3. INELIGABLE EXPENSES 
 
The Office shall not reimburse ineligible expenses under any circumstance. The Office shall conduct an 
internal review of all expenditures under this MOU and utilize historical expenditure data to verify year-
over-year trends to determine eligibility of expenses and their applicability to the items Appendix A. 
 
All work is expected to be complete on or before Election Day; in no case shall work extend beyond 
Election Day with the exception of a potential recount. If any funds remain after the completion of the 
Election, such funds must be returned to the Office forty-five (45) days following Election Day.  
 
4. TERM 
 
This Agreement shall become effective upon the final signature affixed to this Agreement and shall remain 
in effect until its expiration forty-five (45) days following Election Day, unless terminated pursuant to 
Article 7.  
 
5. RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

A. Records. The County shall maintain all fiscal records detailing expenditures under this MOU and 
follow Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), and account for all receipts and 
disbursements of funds transferred to the County pursuant to this MOU. 

B. MOU Execution. Should a MOU between the Parties fail to be finalized sixty (60) days prior to 
Election Day, the County shall only be reimbursed for eligible expenses as outlined in 1.10.36 
NMAC and will only be reimbursed upon finalization of an executed MOU.  

C. Reporting. Each County shall file a report of expenditures with the Office no later than forty-five 
(45) days after Election Day for accounting. The report shall include a completed expenditure form 
provided by the Office with a description detailing the costs and their relevance to the Election. 
Counties shall return any unused funds via physical check made out to the Office of the Secretary 
of State no later than forty-five (45) days after Election Day.  If a County does not file expenditure 
reports by the deadline established in Section A of 1.10.36.10 NMAC, the County shall not be 
reimbursed for additional requests until the expenditure report is filed and funds become available 
for reimbursement. 

 
6. LIABILITY 
 
Each Party shall be solely responsible for liabilities due to its own violation or alleged violation of 
requirements applicable to the performance of the MOU. Neither Party shall be responsible for the other 
Party's acts or omissions in connection with this MOU. Any liability incurred in connection with this MOU 
is subject to the New Mexico Tort Claims Act, Section 41-4-1 et seq., NMSA 1978, as amended.  
 



2023 Regular Local Election MOU 

Page 3 of 6 

7. TERMINATION 
 
Either Party may terminate this Agreement for cause or convenience by giving notice in writing to the 
other Party within thirty (30) days of intended termination. 
 
8. AMENDMENT 
 
This MOU shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by a written instrument duly executed by both 
Parties. Any amendments shall be made in writing and shall be agreed to and executed by the respective 
signatories before becoming effective. 
 
9. CONTACTS 
 
The parties will send written notice when needed to the following individuals: 
 
 
To the Office:                 Justin P. O’Shea 

Chief Financial Officer 
New Mexico Office of the Secretary of State 

325 Don Gaspar Ave, Suite 300 
Santa Fe, NM 87501 

justin.oshea@sos.nm.us 
505.827.3615 

 
 
 

To the County:                    
Shelly K. Trujillo 

Seirra County Clerk 
Sierra County 

100 N. Date St., Suite 6 
Truth or Consequences, NM 87901 

strujillo@sierraco.org 
575.894.2840 

 
 
10. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
A. Compliance with Laws. The laws of the State of New Mexico will govern this MOU. 

The Parties shall comply with all federal and State laws, regulations, and rules applicable 
to the performance of this MOU and the duties hereunder. 

B. Subsequent Terms. This MOU supersedes and replaces all previous oral or written 
agreements between the Parties relating to the subject matter hereof. Furthermore, this 
MOU contains the entire agreement and understanding between the Parties relating to 
the subject matter. 

C. Appropriations. The terms of this MOU are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and 
authorizations made by the Legislature of New Mexico. 

D. Property. The parties understand and agree that property, if any, acquired as a result of this 
Agreement shall be the property of the County. 

 

  

mailto:justin.oshea@sos.nm.us
mailto:strujillo@sierraco.org


2023 Regular Local Election MOU 

Page 4 of 6 

In witness whereof, this Agreement is duly executed upon the date of the last signature affixed and dated: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Maggie Toulouse Oliver, Secretary of State  Date 
Office of the Secretary of State  
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Peter Auh, General Counsel    Date 
Office of the Secretary of State 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo, County Clerk or Designee  Date 
County of Sierra 
 
 

 
______________________________________  ____________________________________ 
James R. Paxon, Chairman    Date 
County of Sierra 

 



2023 Regular Local Election MOU 

Page 5 of 6 

APPENDIX A 
 

DESCRIPTION STATUTORY REQUIREMENT 
RELEVANT 
STATUTE(S) 

REASONABLY INCLUDES: 

Poll Workers 
(Election Boards; 

Absentee, Early and 
Election Day) 

Each election board shall consist of a minimum of 
three judges (required); one presiding judge and two 

election judges. Election clerks can also be 
appointed to assist the presiding judge and election 

judges. 

1-2-12 & 
1-9-5(C), 

NMSA 1978 

 
For all polling locations, no fewer than three 

judges are required to administer the election. In 
the case of Voter Convenience Centers (VCCs), 
a minimum of two ballot-on-demand stations are 

required per site; counties will need to plan 
accordingly to ensure adequate staffing to 

operate these systems. 
 

Registration Officers 
(Same Day 

Registration) 

 
During a statewide the county clerk's office or 

alternate voting location if the clerk has assigned an 
authorized deputy to serve as a registration officer at 

the alternate voting location. 
 

1-4-5.7(D), 
NMSA 1978 

The cost of one authorized registration officer, 
per polling location (that is offering SDR), per 

day. 

Interpreters 

 
In those polling places designated by the secretary 

of state as being subject to the provisions of the 
1975 amendments to the federal Voting Rights Act 
of 1965, oral assistance shall be made available to 
assist language minority voters who cannot read 

sufficiently well to exercise the elective franchise. 
As used in the Election Code, "language minority" 
means a person who is an American Indian or of 

Spanish heritage and "inability to read well enough 
to exercise the elective franchise" means inability to 
read the languages in which the ballot is printed or 

the inability to understand instructions for operating 
the voting machine. 

 

1-2-19, 
NMSA 1978 

Assisting voters who speak a language that is 
unwritten; precincts identified as "Native 
American Precincts" through the Native 
American Election Information Program. 

Messengers 

 
The county clerk may appoint messengers to deliver 
ballot boxes, poll books, keys, election supplies and 

other materials pertaining to the election. 
Messengers may also be authorized to collect 
absentee ballots and removable media storage 
devices from polling places designated by the 
county clerk. and deliver them to locations. 

 

1-2-20, 
NMSA 1978 

Individuals appointed by the clerk to serve as 
messengers, who comply with the requirements 

outlined in 1-2-20. 

Election 
Publications 

 
Election board standby list: Not less than twenty-

one days prior to the date for appointing members of 
election boards, the county clerk shall publish a 

notice once in a newspaper of general circulation to 
the effect that election boards are to be appointed 
for the specified number of precincts, stating the 

number of persons composing each board and that 
applications for the standby list will be accepted at 

the county clerk's office. 
 

Notice of election: The notice of election shall be 
published at least once, not more than twenty-one 
nor less than seven days before election day. The 

notice of election shall be published in a legal 
newspaper as provided in Section 14 11 2, NMSA 

1978. If no legal newspaper is published in the 

1-2-9 & 
1-11-3(A), 

NMSA 1978 

Publication of the election board standby list and 
notice of election. 



2023 Regular Local Election MOU 

Page 6 of 6 

Table 1: Schedule of Cost Eligibility 

county, the notice of election shall be published in a 
legal newspaper of general circulation in the county. 

The notice of election shall be printed in English 
and Spanish. The notice of election shall be 

broadcast on a radio station in the appropriate 
Native American languages in those counties 

affected by the federal Voting Rights Act of 1965, 
as amended. 

 

Polling Place 
Signage & Building 

Requirements 

The location of each polling place within a 
building shall be clearly designated by appropriate 

signs, displayed prominently and clearly. Signs 
for each polling place shall be clearly displayed 
outside the building where polling takes place. 

 

1-3-18(A), 
NMSA 1978 

Appropriate signage and materials used to clearly 
and prominently display where polling is taking 

place. 

Postage 

 
The clerk shall determine the most reasonable 
expedited means of delivery for a ballot and 

balloting materials for a federal qualified elector 
who does not request secured electronic 

transmission. 
 
 

1-6-8(A)(2); 
1-6B-7(D) & 
1-6C-6(C), 

NMSA 1978 

Postage for absentee ballots (outbound) and 
returned mail ballots (inbound). 

Tabulator Delivery 

 
The county clerk shall be responsible for 

transporting all voting systems to and from polling 
places. A reasonable fee may be charged by the 

county for the transportation and programming of 
the voting systems when used pursuant to Section 1 

9 6, NMSA 1978, but in no case shall such fee 
exceed the actual cost to the county. Voting 

machines shall be delivered to the assigned precinct 
polling place at least three days before the polls are 
required to be opened. The election supplies and the 

keys of voting machines shall be delivered to the 
presiding judge at least one hour before the polls are 

required to be opened. 
 

1-9-12(A)(E) 
& 1-11-11(A), 
NMSA 1978 

Transport of voting systems to and from polling 
locations. 

Office Supplies 
(for the Election) 

Supplies needed for the administration of the 
election. 

1-11-19(A)(2), 
NMSA 1978 

 
Consumable office supplies required to conduct 
the election and post-election canvass including 
paper, ballot marking pens, pencils, paperclips, 

staples etc. 
 

"Other" N/A N/A 

 
Temporary election support staff and/or 

overtime (OT) for county employees, provided 
the OT is incurred during the conduct and 

administration of the Election.  
 



NEW MEXICO OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 
REPORTING FORM

Phone Email

ITEM DESCRIPTION AMOUNT COMMENTS/NOTES
1 Poll Workers/Election Board
2 Registration Officers (Same Day Registration)

3 Language Interpreters
4 Election Publication(s)
5 Tabulator Delivery
6 Postage (if applicable)

7 Office Supplies (if applicable)

8 Messengers/Couriers (if applicable)

9 Polling Place Signage & Building Requirements (if applicable)

10 Other (provide brief summary)

11 Recount Costs (if applicable)

TOTAL AMOUNT SPENT -$                                  

ORIGINAL GRANT AMOUNT 15,000.00$                      

AMOUNT DUE TO SOS (if positive/green)

AMOUNT DUE TO COUNTY (if negative/red)
15,000.00$                      

County Representative (Signature) 

2023 REGULAR LOCAL ELECTION EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

CONTACT INFORMATION:

SIERRACOUNTY:
DATE:

COMPLETED BY:

Please complete and return via email with all accounting records to sos-finance@state.nm.us no later than forty-five (45) days following Election Day.
This document is official and serves as an invoice.



Page 1 of 5 
 

    
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

SIERRA COUNTY 
AND THE 

SOUTH CENTRAL COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
 
 

This Agreement, hereinafter referred to as “MOA” is entered into on _____ day of _________, 
2023 between the South Central Council of Governments (“SCCOG”) a regional planning 
organization of the State of New Mexico and Sierra County (“County”), collectively referred to as 
the “Parties”. 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, SCCOG was established pursuant to the Regional Planning Act, Sections 3-56-

1 NMSA 1978, et seq. and is the regional council of state planning and development district 
number 3 as provided in the Planning District Act, Sections 4-58-1 NMSA 1978, et seq. and is a 
local public body as defined in Article 6, Local Government Finances Section 6-6-1 NMSA 1978; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the County is a member of SCCOG; and 
 

WHEREAS, Executive Order 2013-006 issued May 2, 2013, provides that a grantee for 
appropriations may not receive such funds if its audit does not meet certain requirements unless 
such funds are received by another appropriate entity acting as a fiscal agent; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the County requires assistance from a qualified local body to serve as fiscal 
agent to receive the legislative appropriations for the Project; and; 

 
WHEREAS, the County requires oversight with any and all contracts issued pursuant to any 

Request for Proposals or Invitation for Bids for the Project; and; 
 
WHEREAS, SCCOG has the necessary expertise, staff and experience to serve as the fiscal 

agent to the County and to oversee the Procurement Process including issuance of contracts and 
payment for services for the Project; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County has requested that SCCOG serve as the fiscal agent and oversee the 

procurement process, issuance of any contracts and process payment for services for the Project. 
 



Page 2 of 5 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES AND 
REPRESENTATIONS IN THIS MOA, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  DUTIES. 
 

A. SCCOG: 
 
   SCCOG will provide the following administrative services for the Project. 
 

1. SCCOG will provide oversight to the County in preparing the request for bids or RFP in 
accordance with the NM Procurement Code, NMSA § 13-1-1 et. seq. 

2. SCCOG shall appoint a staff liaison to coordinate with the purchasing agent designated 
by the County to oversee the procurement process and administration of any contracts 
awarded for the Project.  

3. The SCCOG procurement office and Executive Director will approve invoices associated 
with the Project.  

4. All funds appropriated by the Legislature for the aforementioned purpose shall 
be received by the County from the Department of Finance and Administration Local 
Government Division or respective state agency. 

5. SCCOG shall ensure that grant funds are expended in compliance with all applicable 
laws, regulations and grant agreement and the transactions are appropriately accounted 
for in compliance with such laws, regulations and grant agreement. 

6. SCCOG shall ensure safeguarding of grant funds and assets acquired with grant funds 
and proper accounting thereof in compliance with applicable laws, regulations and grant 
agreement. 

7. SCCOG will charge the county for direct labor costs that are associated with oversight of 
the Projects.  In no event shall the administrative fee be paid from the appropriations 
authorized by the Local Government Division of the Department of Finance and 
Administration and funded by the NM Legislature from Severance tax bond 
proceeds.  The administrative fee shall be paid by the County out of County Funds.  

 
B.  County: 

 
1. The County will prepare and manage the request for bids or RFP (as required by 

procurement code) for all equipment purchases, design documents and the necessary 
information to issue a request for proposals or invitation to bid for the Project. 

2. Upon completion of the Project, the equipment purchased shall be the property of the 
County.  All purchased equipment shall be placed on the County’s inventory. 

3. The County will designate a purchasing agent to oversee the issuance of the request for 
bids or RFP, manage the procurement process and administer any and all contracts issued 
for the Project.  The purchasing agent will work in conjunction with the procurement 
manager provided by SCCOG. 

4. The County shall pay SCCOG for direct labor costs associated with oversight of the 
Projects.  In no event shall the administrative fee be paid from the appropriations 
authorized by the Local Government Division of the Department of Finance and 



Page 3 of 5 
 

Administration and funded by the NM Legislature from Severance tax bond 
proceeds.  The administrative fee shall be paid by the County out of County Funds.  

 
Section 2.   COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT.  The County shall pay 
SCCOG an amount equal to the direct labor costs associated with oversight of the Projects.  
Payment shall be made on a payment schedule to be negotiated by the Parties, with final payment 
to be received upon completion of the Project. 
 
Section 3. TERM. This agreement shall be from the date of approval to June 30, 2024, and 
may be renewed or terminated upon the written agreement of both parties.    
 
Section 4. TERMINATION. Either party may terminate this MOA upon 30 days written 
notice.  Such early termination shall not nullify obligations incurred for performance or failure to 
perform prior to termination.  
 
Section 5. AMENDMENT. This MOA may be amended at any time by mutual agreement of 
the parties.  Any amendment shall be in writing and executed by the Parties. 
 
Section 6.       COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  In performing the disposition of Property 
pursuant to this MOA, the Parties shall comply with the laws of the State of New Mexico, the 
policies of the County and the policies of the SCCOG.    
 
Section 7.   STATUS.  SCCOG, its employees and agents performing the services pursuant to 
this MOA are not employees of the County.  The SCCOG and its agents and employees shall not 
accrue leave, retirement, insurance, bonding, use of County vehicles, or any other benefits 
afforded to employees of the County. 
 
Section 8.   ASSIGNMENT.  The SCCOG shall not assign or transfer any interest in this 
agreement or assign any claims for money due or to become due under this agreement without 
the prior written approval of both Parties. 
 
Section 9.   SUBCONTRACTING.  The SCCOG may not subcontract portions of the 
services to be performed under this agreement without the prior written approval of the County. 
 
Section 10.   APPROPRIATIONS.  The terms of this MOA are contingent upon sufficient 
funds being made available by the Legislature of the State of New Mexico for the performance 
of this agreement.  If sufficient funds are not made available, this MOA shall terminate.  
Termination pursuant to this section shall be effective upon written notice being given by the 
County to SCCOG.   
 
Section 11.   RELEASE.  The SCCOG, upon final payment of all amounts due under this 
MOA, shall release the County, its officers and employees from all liabilities, claims and 
obligations whatsoever arising from or under this MOA. 
 
Section 12.  Liability.  Each Party shall be solely responsible for its own actions and for the actions 
of its employees, officers or agents under this MOA.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive 



Page 4 of 5 
 

any and all limitations on liability and other protections under the New Mexico Tort Claims Act. 
All of the privileges and immunities from liability, exemptions from laws, ordinances and rules, 
all pension, relief, disability, workmen's compensation and other benefits which apply to the 
activity of officers, agents or employees of any Party when performing their respective functions 
within the territorial limits of their respective public agencies, shall apply to them to the same 
extent while engaged in the performance of their functions and duties extraterritorially under the 
provisions of this MOA. 

Section 13.  SCOPE OF AGREEMENT.  This MOA incorporates all the agreements and 
understandings between the Parties concerning its subject matter, and all agreements and 
understandings have been merged into this MOA.  No prior or contemporaneous agreement or 
understanding, verbal or otherwise, of the parties or their agents concerning the subject matter of 
this MOU is valid or enforceable unless included in this MOA 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this MOA on the dates specified below. 
  
 
 SOUTH CENTRAL COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS   
 
By: __________________________ 

Jay Armijo, Executive Director 
 
Date: __________________________, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY  
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 15th day of September, 2023.   
 
 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Travis Day, Chairman  
 



Page 5 of 5 
 

 
______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 
 
 





































































































































































1 

SIERRA COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. 110-188 

AMENDED TAKE HOME VEHICLE POLICY 

WHEREAS, the Sierra County Board of Commissioners met upon notice of 
meeting duly published at the Sierra County Administration Building, 1712 North Date 
Street, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 on April 16, 2013, at 10:00 a.m. as 
required by law; and,  

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Sierra 
exercises the powers of the County as a body politic and corporate pursuant to NMSA 
1978, Section 4-38-1(1884); and,  

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners is the body that is statutorily 
charged with making such orders concerning the property belonging to the county as it 
deems expedient pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-38-13 (1876); and,  

WHEREAS, to improve services, county government has a need to assign take 
home vehicles to certain Elected Officials, appointed officials, and county employees, 
e.g., law enforcement personnel and on-call staff; and

WHEREAS, this policy is not intended to limit or restrict elected officials’ 
authority; it is, however, necessary for efficient management and for limiting the county’s 
liability exposure.   

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners promulgated this take-home 
policy ten (10) years ago, and changes in County operations have necessitated a revision 
to the take-home vehicle policy to expedite and streamline the approval process. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of County 
Commissioners of the County of Sierra that the following assigned take home vehicle 
program is adopted as of the date below, replaces the prior take home vehicle program 
adopted by Resolution in April 2013, and replaces that policy contained within Appendix 
H of the Vehicle Accident Prevention Policy. 

I. PROGRAM

A. Participation in this program is voluntary; however, the County has the right to
deny participation, or suspend, revoke, terminate or modify this program at any time, and
for any reason.  No elected official, appointed official, or county employee shall operate
any County owned motor vehicle or motorized equipment on a twenty-four hour basis
except as provided in this section.



 2 

 
B. This program is reserved for elected officials, appointed officials, and county 
employees having an official need for a county vehicle beyond normal working hours, 
e.g., sworn law enforcement, on-call status, subject to call-out, etc.  Personnel will not 
operate vehicles during off-duty hours, except when on-call status, to and from work, and 
when on official county business. 
 
C. This program shall not be construed nor is it intended as a benefit to participating 
employees, but rather an efficient means of accomplishing county business as certain job 
duties may necessitate. 
 
D. Elected officials, appointed officials, and county employees volunteering for this 
program agree to abide by all rules and regulations governing county fleet operations and 
this program. 
 
E. This program will be reviewed periodically and may be modified at the discretion 
of the County.  If in the opinion of the County Commission, the Assigned Take Home 
Vehicle Program, as covered by this policy, proves unworkable in practice, the County 
Commission shall have the right to modify or terminate this policy at any time. 
 
F. Take home vehicle privileges may be revoked indefinitely or modified for any 
reason or infraction of this program.  Personnel will be notified in writing of a 
modification, suspension, revocation or termination of their take-home privileges. 
 
II. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
A. No one other than the assigned individual is permitted to drive the county vehicle.  
Personnel will not presume any special privileges with a county vehicle while off-duty. 
 
B. When off-duty, unattended vehicles must be locked and parked in a safe 
condition. 
 
C. Personnel will not operate an assigned vehicle while under the influence of 
alcohol or drugs, and shall not operate the vehicle within eight (8) hours after consuming 
an alcoholic beverage. 
 
D. Personnel participating in this program will not transport passengers, except in the 
course and scope of duty.  The safety of all passengers rests solely with the person issued 
and operating the County vehicle. 
 
E. Personnel will not use the county vehicle for personal business or commercial 
enterprise. 
 
F. When an individual is out of town for seven (7) or more days, the county vehicle 
will be properly secured at the main office.  Department managers may be more 
restrictive to prevent unnecessary damage, theft, or vandalism to county property. 



 3 

 
G. Personnel assigned a county vehicle will exercise good judgment when utilizing 
the vehicle, and obey all local and state traffic laws, and county fleet policies.  Personnel 
will not operate the vehicle in a manner that causes unfavorable comment or reflects 
discredit on the county. 
 
H. It shall be the policy of Sierra County that Personnel shall not be assigned a motor 
vehicle or motorized equipment on a twenty-four hour basis unless such Personnel 
resides within the limits of Sierra County. Personnel will not use the vehicle outside the 
county, except when on official county business.   
 
I. All take home vehicle assignments will be approved by the County Manager. 
 
III. MAINTENANCE REGULATIONS 
 
A. The individual assigned a county vehicle shall be fully responsible for ensuring 
that the general maintenance and proper care of the vehicle is performed. 
 
B. All repairs and work will be accomplished timely, at or through the county's 
authorized service facility.  Individuals assigned a take home vehicle are responsible for 
having scheduled preventative maintenance (PM) performed timely and in accordance 
with the County's PM schedule.   
 
C. Individuals are responsible for the appearance and cleanliness of their vehicles, 
both interior and exterior.   
 
D. The immediate supervisor of the assigned vehicle operator will inspect vehicles 
quarterly.  The inspection will include, but will not be limited to: 
 
1. Cleanliness of the interior and exterior 
2. Maintenance is performed at proper intervals 
3. Equipment is in good working order 
4. Alterations or additions are authorized 
 
E. Negligence in the care and operation of the vehicle or failure to follow these 
procedures or county fleet policies by the assigned individual will be cause for removal 
from the program. 
 
F. If it becomes necessary for an assigned vehicle to be out of service for extended 
repairs, the individual may be assigned another vehicle. 
 
IV. IMMEDIATE REVOCATION OF VEHICLE ASSIGNMENT 
 
All elected officials, appointed officials, and county employees who voluntarily 
participate in the take home vehicle program shall be required to submit for a drug and 
alcohol screening test.  Any individual who has voluntarily participated in the take home 



 4 

vehicle program and whose drug and alcohol screening test is identified as positive shall 
not be eligible for a take home vehicle and is precluded from reapplication for a take 
home vehicle for a period of one (1) year from the date of the test. 

 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 13th of September, 2023. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Travis Day, Chairman 
 
 
______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 
 
 
 
        
 
 
 



SIERRA COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. 110-189 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE 2023 TAX RATES 

WHEREAS, the Board of Sierra County Commissioners of Sierra County, New 
Mexico, meeting on September 13, 2023, deem it necessary to approve the 2023 
Tax Rates as set forth in the certification issued by the Department of Finance and 
Administration; and 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 7-38-34 requires that the Board of County 
Commissioners issue a written order, imposing those rates set forth and deliver a 
copy of this order immediately to the County Assessor; and 

WHEREAS, the imposition of Property Tax Rates pursuant to Section 7-38-
34,and by the 2012 Certificate of Tax Rates are hereby certified as the Tax Rates 
for the Government units sharing in the tax in accordance with the property tax 
code. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of County 
Commissioners, Sierra County, New Mexico hereby approve and implement the 
aforementioned 2023 Certificate of Tax Rates, attached hereto. 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 13th day of September, 2023. 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY 

______________________________________ 
Travis Day, Chairman  

______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 

______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 



Attest: 

_________________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 



DocuSign Envelope lD: 3DE0C5D4-D895-4CA9-8981 -35B3BAFE3D1 D

State of New Mexico
Department of Finance & Administration

180 Bataan Memorial Building
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501

Phone: (505) 827-4985
Fax: (505) 827-4984

vwyw. n m dfa. state.n m. u s

911t2023

i,tECEIUEIi

sEP 0 6 2A23

COUNTYof SIERRA

Michelle Lujan Grisham Wayne Propst
Cabinet Secretary

September 1, 2023

The Honorable Travis Day
Sierra County
855 Van Patten
Truth or Consequences, NM 87901

Order Setting Property Tax Rates - 2023 Property Tax Year

Dear Commissioner Duy,

Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Sections 7-37-7(A) and 7-38-33(,4,), I issue this order setting the2023
tax rates in the attached Certificate of Property Tax Rates (Certificate) for all govemmental units
imposing rates in your county.

NMSA 1978, Section 7-38-34 requires the Board of County Commissioners (Board) to issue and
deliver to the County Assessor its own written order imposing these rates within five days of its
receipt of this rate-setting order. Before the Board issues its order, the county is responsible
for ensuring that the rates are correct and must notify the Local Government Division of
the Department of Finance and Administration of any errors, in accordance with 3.6.50.1 I
(D) NMAC. To funher those efforts, please immediately share the Certificate with all
governmental units (other than the State) that have rates included in the Certificate, so that they
may also check the accuracy of their rates. In addition, please note that the "percentage change I"
used as specified in NMSA 1978, Section 7-37-7.1 (A) for yield control calculations this year
was the statutory maximum of 5o/o due to inflation and tlpically calculates higher mill rates.

Any questions concerning or suspected errors in the rates should be immediately brought to the
attention of the Local Government Division's Budget and Finance Bureau Chief, Cordelia
Chavez, at 505-231-7246; or Special Projects Analyst, Catrina Chavez, at 505-479-1247.

Sincerely,

1-Docusigned 
by:

I u*r L'r
\-6E94g958A89A432

Wayne Propst
Secretary of Finance & Administration

Property Tax Division, Taxation & Revenue Department (via email)
County Assessor (via email)
County Treasurer (via email)

Enclosure(s): Certificate of Property Tax Rates

GOVERIiOR

cc

Administrative Services Division (505) 827-3638
State Budget Division (505) 827-3640

Financial Control Division (505) 827-3682
Local Government Division (505) 827-4975

State Board ofFinance (505) 827-4980



Certificate of Property Tax Rates in Mills TY2023 Sierra County - printed from LGBMS on 2023-09-01 1t:11.20

Certificate of Property Tax Rates in Mills
Sierra County
Tax Year 2023

OVERALL COUNry NET TAXABLE VALUE: $3S2,005,616

Property Classification

Tax District

Municipality

Residential

6EBR

Elephant Butte (City)

Public School District Truth or Consequences

College District

Taxable Value 49,733,665

Mill Levies for State, County, Municipality, and School District

State Debt Service 1.360

Total State 1.360

County Debt Service

County Operational rc.614

TotalCounty '10.674

Municipal Debt Service -

Municipal Operational 4.201

Tota! Municipal 4.207

School Building (House Bill 33 Levy)

School Capital lmprovement (Senate Bill 9 Levy) 1.999

School District Debt Service 5.65t

School District Ed. Tech. Debt Service -

School District Operational 0.500

Total School District 8.150

TotalState, County, Municipaland School 24.391
District

Non-Residential

6EBNR

Elephant Butte (City)

Truth or Consequences

17,589,378

1.360

1.360

11.850

11.850

4.225

4.225

2.000

5.651

0.500

8.151

25.586

Residential

6IN R

Truth or Consequences
(City)

Truth or Consequences

73,714,865

1.360

1.360

10.674

10.674

1.537

',.537

1.999

5.651

0.500

8.150

2'.1.721

Non-Residential

6IN NR

Truth or Consequences
(city)

Truth or Consequences

Residential

6OUTR

Non-Residential

6 OUT NR

Truth or Consequences Truth or Consequences

38,830,727

1.360

1.360

11.850

11.850

2.225

2.225

2.000

5.651

0.500

8.151

23.s86

87,111,803

1.360

1.360

10.674

10.674

0.000

1.999

5.651

0.500

8.150

20.184

78,763,993

1.360

,.360

11.850

11.8s0

0.000

2.000

s.651

0.s00

8.151

21.361

1t5



Certificate of Property Tax Rates in Mills fY2O23 Sierra County - printed from LGBMS on 2023-09-01 1T:11:20

Tax District

Mill Levies for College and Hospital

Total Higher Education

Sierra County Hospital

Hospital Debt Service

Hospital Operational

TotalHospital

Total College and Hospitat

Grand TotalState, Coungt, Municipal, Public
School, College, Hospital

Mil! Levies for Other Taxing Entities

Undenuood Watershed

Special District Debt Service

Special District Operational

Sierra Flood Control

Special District Operational

Sierra SWCD

Special District Operational (Not Yietd
Controlled)

Caballo SWCD

Special District Operational (Not Yield
Controlled)

State Debt Service

TotalOther

Grand Total

6EBR

0.000

2.000

2.000

2.000

26.391

1.500

1.000 1.000

6IN R

0.000

2.000

2.000

2.000

23.721

1.500

1.000

2.500

26.221

6EBNR

0.000

2.000

2.000

2.000

27.586

1.500

6IN NR

0.000

2.000

2.000

2.000

25.586

1.500

1.000

2.500

28.086

6OUTR

0.000

2.000

2.000

2.000

22.184

5.000

1.500

1.000

1.000

8.500

30.684

6 OUT NR

0.000

2.000

2.000

2.000

23.361

5.000

2.500

28.E91

2.500

30.086

1.500

1.000

1.000

8.500

31.861

2t5



Certificate of Property Tax Rates in Mills TY2023 Sierra County - printed from LGBMS on 2023-09-01 17:11:20

Property Classification Residential

Tax District 6W tN R

Municipality Williamsburg (Viilage)

Public School District Truth or Consequences

College District

Taxable Value 4,972,601

Mill Levies for State, County, Municipality, and School District

State Debt Service 1.360

TotalState 1.360

County Debt Service -

County Operational 10.614

TotalCounty 10.674

Municipal Debt Service -

Municipal Operational 1.682

Total Municipal 1.697

School Building (House Bill 33 Levy)

School Capital lmprovement (Senate Bill 9 Levy) 1.999

School District Debt Service 5.651

School District Ed. Tech. Debt Service -

School District Operational 0.500

TotalSchoolDistrict 8.150

Total State, County, Municipal and School Z1.Bl1
District

Non-Residential

6W IN NR

Williamsburg (Village)

Truth or Consequences

1,388,584

1.360

1.360

11.850

11.850

2.115

2.115

2.000

5.651

0.500

8.151

23.476

3/5



Certificate of Property Tax Rates in Mills TY2023 Sierra County - printed from LGBMS on 2023-09-01 17:11.20

Tax District

Mill Levies for College and Hospital

Total Higher Education

Sierra County Hospital

Hospital Debt Service

Hospital Operational

Total Hospital

l"otal College and Hospital

Grand Total State, County, Municipal, Public
Schoo!, College, Hospital

Mill Levies for Other Taxing Entities

Underwood Watershed

Special District Debt Service

Special District Operational

Sierra Flood Control

Special District Operational

Sierra SWCD

Special District Operational (Not Yield
Controlled)

Caballo SWCD

Special District Operational (Not Yield
Controlled)

State Debt Service

TotalOther

Grand Total

6WINR

0.000

2.000

2.000

2.000

23.871

1.500

1.000

2.500

26.371

6W !N NR

0.000

2.000

2.000

2.000

25.476

't.500

1.000

2.500

27.976

415



Certificate of Property Tax Rates in Mills TY2023 Sierra County - printed from LGBMS on 2023-09-01 1T:11:20

Llvestock Mill Levies

Category

Cattle lndemnity

S heep/Goats/Swi ne/Al paca

Dairy Cattle

Bison/Camelids/Ratite

Horses/Asses/Mules

Other Assessments

Category

Footnotes

Tax District

Amendments

Date

Rate

10.000

9.147

5.000

7.614

9.770

Applicable Tax Districts

6W IN,6 IN,6 OUT,6 OUT,6 OUT

6 OUT,6 OUT,6 OUT,6 OUT,6 OUT,6 OUT,6 OUT,6 IN,6 OUT,6 OUT,6 IN,6 IN,6 OUT,6 OUT,6 OUT

6 OUT,6 OUT,6 OUT

6 OUT,6 OUT,6 OUT

6 OUT,6 IN,6 OUT,6 OUT,6 IN,6 IN

Taxing Entity Description

Classification Assessment Footnote

Description

5/5


	Agenda
	PUBLIC HEARING
	Special Meeting - June
	Regular Meeting- July
	Special Meeeting - July
	Special Meeting - August
	Res 110-185
	Res 110-186
	Res 110-187
	July Reconciliation
	August Reconciliation
	Ord 16-009

